700 OPERATIONS

LIMITED

21. EVENTS SINCE THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
{in 17th June 1992, the Society announced that London Zoo would close at the end of September 1992, The costs of this closure y

borne by the Zoological Society of London.

22. OWNERSHIP
The Company is wholly owned by the Zoological Society of London, which is incorporated by Royal Charter and is a registered ¢f

No. 208728,

L . " 1 f
Printed on chlorine-free -:‘I!|1.'|r'1:|i|||:|.|-|1|:;q]|:,|- friendly paper
by Henry Ling Ltd, at the Dorset Press, Dorchester, Dorset

&b




&
o)
o
a
~
& oA
£ i o
St e

LD el
< Z “H %
= = -
o) = aa
OrOr 5 e
= 3
S & <
S =
= O Z
= O o
— =t




THE ZOOLOGICAL
SOCIETY OF LONDON

ANNUAL REPORT
19921993

This Report covers the period from 1 April 1992 to 31 March 199 3.

Published by

The Zoological Society of London,
Regent's Park, London NW1 4RY

Telephone:

National: 071-722 3333
International: +44 71 722 3333
Fax: 071 483 4436

Whipsnade Wild Animal Park
Dunstable, Beds LU6 2LF

Telephone:

National: 0582 872171
International: +44 10582872171
Fax: 0582 872649




THE ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF LONDON

MISSION STATEMENT

To promote the worldwide conservation of animal species and their habitats by stimulating public awareness 47
concern through the presentation of living collections, by relevant research and by direct action in the field,

MISSION AIMS

'

b.

4.

To foster public awareness of the variety and diversity of the living world through imaginative exhibits featuring live animal
appropriate environments.

To maintain and breed species with a high conservation and education value and to link this to a comprehensive programy

learning for all age groups, but particularly for children of school age.

To increase our understanding of the biology of rare animal species, concentrating on veterinary research, reproduction, gen

ethology and ecology.

Toinitiate and run practical conservation programmes chosen in accordance with accepted international criteria for effective and

priority conservation.

To promote the understanding of conservation issues and their relationship to the development of the world's poorest countries an
promote the application of sound scientific principles to wildlife management.

To ensure that the highest standards of husbandry and welfare are emploved wherever we care for animals and that techniqui
further improve the husbandry of these species are studied and communicated to others.

To co-operate with other responsible societies and organisations promoting conservation on a worldwide basis.

To disseminate new knowledge in Zoology and field conservation through publications, symposia, scientific meetings and mainten;
of the library.

To make awards of prizes and medals for distinguished work in Zoology and Conservation.

ABOUT THE SOCIETY

The Society was founded in 1826 by Sir Stamford Raffles, Sir Humphry Davy and other eminent naturalists. The Society is a chi
incorporated by Royal Charter, granted in 182%9. A new Charter was issued in 196 3.

The Society was formed as a scientific society and this remains its prime purpose. It now comprises five divisions which act togeth:

furtherance of the aims set out in the Mission Statement.

London Zoo (opened 1828) and Whipsnade Wild Animal Park (opened 1931) co-operate in the management and exhibition ol

society's animal collections. They are amongst the world's leading wildlife visitor attractions and enjov an enviable reputation in
breeding of endangered species.

The Education Departments at London Zoo and Whipsnade are instrumental in the provision of knowledge to the visitor. There i

extensive programme for schools and many other courses and events are arranged at both locations.

The Institute of Zoology was formed in 1977 to link the Wellcome Institute of Comparative Physiology, the Nuffield Institul

Comparative Medicine (both founded by the Society during the 1 960 's) and the Veterinary Hospitals at London Zoo and Whipsnade Parl
wide range of research is undertaken I'J:'.' the Institute much of it in close Co-operalion with the Zoos. Ii ENCOMPasses waork on ecolog
genetics, reproductive biology, wildlife disease and veterinary medicine, all of which is directed towards the conservation of rare i
threatened species and the highest standards of animal care.

I'he Conservation and Consultancy Division was created in 1992 and builds on a variety of overseas field work and zoo design w

initiated some 15 years ago. Activity is concentrated in Africa and the Middle East. The work encompasses direct support for threaten
species such as I..‘ll.‘[J!'Iiil'Il and rhino, training of nationals, secondment of skilled staff and management of multidisciplinary projects
conservation research and related field operations.

I'he Learned Society, as the core division. is responsible for encouraging the spread of know ledge by arranging discussion mectings

publishing the results of zoological research and by maintaining a library,

scientific Meetings, at which the results of new research are communicated and discussed, are held on eight occasions during the year

Symposia on special subjects of international interest are also arranged and generally occupy two days of contributions and discussion:

The Society's publications include:
The Journal of Zoology, which publishes original research in all fields of zoology, from international contributors. The wide variety of
contents provides a broad view of trends and developments in the subject.
lhe Symposia series of books, each of which contains the papers presented at a Symposium and thus covers a particular topic in dept
The International Zoo Yearbook, a work of reference as well as an authoritative record of developments in the zoo world.
The Zoological Record, a comprehensive annual bibliography of zoological literature with subject and systematic indexes. The Recori
published in conjunction with BIOSIS, Philadelphia. Produced continuously since 1864, it is an un-rivalled source of information
zoological research world-wide.

The Library was established soon after the Society's foundation and is now one of the major zoological libraries in the world. It provide?

full library service to members of the Society and to its staff, It also houses a unigue archive,

ILLUSTRATIONS

Cover: Tanysiptera carolinae by Henry Jones (1838-1921). Framed print obtainable rom the Society's Library.
1 “ 1 r g 1 A : ; 3
Photographs: Michael Lyster, Peter H Denton, Ray Charter, Terry Dennett, David Jones and Linda Walker
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The Council has pleasure in presenting its 164th Annual Report to the
Annual General Meeting of the Society to be held on 22 September 1993 at
3.00 pm in the Society's Meeting Room at Regent's Park.
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rlouncil learned with regret of the death of
Lord Zuckerman on 1st April 1993,
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\ESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT SN ALREROLT
{ELD MARSHAL SIR JOHN CHAPPLE

ink that evervone connected with the Society will recognise that the past year has been a particularly momentous one,
with a number of difficulties which have had to be resolved.
\s a result of the work done last year by Sir Ronald Waterhouse's working group on the Charter and Byelaws, we have
roceeded to redraft these documents along the lines which met with the Society’s general endorsement at the last AGM. This
rking group is now being chaired by the Hon Peregrine Simon QC and. in brief, it is hoped that the revised Roval Charter
night be in place by Spring 1994. 1 am very grateful to all those members of Council and our staff for the great amount of work
t they have done to take these detailed matters forward. Reports on progress have been included in the Fellows’ newsletters
nd an up-to-date statement will be made at the AGM.

\lter the result of the ballot last September, nearly all members of Council offered to stand down when suitable replace-
nts had been found. This process was conducted under the existing constitution, and by early this year 9 casual vacancies
i Council had been made and a new Honorary Secretary and Honorary Treasurer had been appointed. Together with the
tine retirements of Council members as reported separately, there will be a substantially new Council in place for
nfirmation at the AGM. The procedure adopted this year for calling for nominations. and then voting on these by the
‘dlowship, is the first step towards the new procedures which are intended to apply in future.
'he budgets for all operating Divisions of the Society have been subjected to very tight scrutiny. The economic climate is
une too favourable but great efforts have been taken by all concerned to control costs and increase revenue. This has not been
dmme without sacrifice and I would like to pay tribute to the commitment and dedication of all those who work for the Society
I facing these difficulties with such determination.

The way in which costs have been contained at Whipsnade has been truly remarkable, likewise at London Zoo severe cost
ltting measures have been taken. These savings have been achieved withoul affecting the visitor experience. In addition al
ndon, a new strategic plan has been agreed and announced. This has won the approval of Government in terms of its
alism and targets,

The discussions for a renewal of the lease for the Regent's Park site are well underway. We are also in close touch with the
oyal Parks Review body.

Finally, this Report records with great sadness the passing of Lord Zuckerman. Sir Ronald Waterhouse has written
lsewhere in this Report on his services to the Society. He was associated with the Society through more than a third of our
Istory, His contribution will surely last equally long in the future,

thm
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{ photo: Bern Schwartz)

PROFESSOR LORD ZUCKERMAN OM, KCB. DSc. FIBiol, FRS

( Reprinted from the Annual Report 1984)

Lord Zuckerman who was elected to the Council in 1953, served as Honorary Secretary from 1955 to 1977, whe
succeeded His Royal Highness Prince Philip as President. It is impossible in a few paragraphs to do justice to
progress that has been made under his leadership and guidance over the last 30 years in the regeneration of the scientil
work of the Society, the rebuilding of the Society's Gardens at Regent's Park and the development of Whipsnade Pa
When Lord Zuckerman took office the Society's affairs were in a parlous state following the economic depression ol
thirties, the disruption and damage during the war vears, and the restrictions of the post war period. Apart from
buildings designed by Lubetkin, there had been no new major building for 25 years: the constitutional and admin
trative framework of the Society still stemmed largely from the 19th Century and the financial resources available |
tackle the task of development and rebuilding were minimal.

The first few years were spent in fact finding, analysing problems and laying the ground work for future develor

ment. Many new activities were instituted including the establishment of a TV Film Unit in conjunction with Granad

Television, the setting up of Zoo Restaurants Limited, the educational scheme. the series of research symposia, |
re-organization of the scientific publications and the launching of the International Zoo Yearbook. Stafl conditions
were improved, training schemes introduced and an assured Pension Fund set up. In November 1957 an importan
development was the opening of the Zoo on Sunday mornings to the general public. and the re-organization of the
Fellowship, which had remained unchanged since 1832. This led to a much publicised revolt by a small group
Fellows who objected to the restriction of their privileges and the emphasis which was being given to scientific develo
ment. The events of 1957, 1958 and 1959, recounted in detail in the Annual Reports for these vears, were only fimally
resolved by a decision of the Court of Appeal in favour of the Council's interpretation of the Byelaw in dispute.
granting ol a new Royal Charter followed in 1963,

Ihe sixties and early seventies saw a major rebuilding programme in Regent's Park, based on a plan prepared by 57 g™

Hugh Casson in 1959. Over half the London Zoo was rebuilt and over three-quarters of the mammals were re-house
In addition to many smaller projects such as the modernization of the Library, restaurants, kiosks and other publt
[acilities, the building of the Social Club and Educational Centre, major animal buildings were the Cotton Terraces al
snowdon Aviary (1963/1965); the Elephant and Rhino Pavilion (1965); the Clore Pavilion for Small Mammals (196

& " e M . e X i = 1 £ Y - ™ Ry HEF i1
the Sobell Pavilions for Apes and Monkeys (1972) and the New Lion Terraces (1976). With unremitting enthusias" §

energy and determination, Lord Zuckerman personally undertook the responsibility of securing the necessary finant
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qurces, and succeeded in raising many millions of pounds towards the cost of the programme. He also secured
qancial support for the capital programme from HM Government and the LCC. in 1964, and again from the
b vernment in 1970, During the period of this reconstruction and regeneration, Lord Zuckerman won the respect, confidence
- affection of the staff,

Lord Zuckerman’s association with the Society began in 1928 when he was appointed Anatomical Research Fellow,
his autobiography he describes the small gas-lit Prosectorium and the three small rooms in the Bird House, which
yere then the only laboratories. Today. the Society's extensive modern veterinary facilities, pathology department,
carch laboratories in the Hospital (1955). the Wellcome Laboratories of Comparative Physiology (1963) and the
\uffield Laboratories of Comparative Medicine (1965) comprising the Institute of Zoology are among the foremost in
v oo in the world. The standards of animal husbandry and veterinary medicine, and the research undertaken in
mparative physiology, comparative medicine and conservation genetics are acknowledged as a unique national
sprce. This could not have been achieved without the personal commitment of Lord Zuckerman and his success in
taining the support of large Foundations including, in particular, the Nuffield, Ford and Wolfson Foundations and
Wellcome Trust.

n 1970, the Council awarded to Lord Zuckerman the Society’'s Gold Medal in recognition of what had been
g hieved in the first 15 yvears of his Secretaryship. This is the highest honour the Society can confer and in the last 100
ars has only been awarded on seven occasions. When presenting the medal to Lord Zuckerman, HRH Prince Philip

During his tenure of office Lord Zuckerman has breathed new life into the Society. It is through his enthusiasm
nd planning and his positive genius for extracting money in large guantities that we have been able to achieve so
nuch rebuilding in the Gardens and the Park and regenerate the Society's scientific work. He has had not only the
ision of what should be done, but the determination to see it through despite the many, many difficulties which
iave been faced during the last years. At a time when so much effort was needed to find the resources to carry
through the Society’s rebuilding programme, to build new veterinary accommodation and facilities and to institute
1 new pathology department, he has also obtained the necessary support to found two new research institutes
which are now firmly established and have won national and international recognition.

| have alreadv referred to the scientific work of the Society which owes so much to his firm belief in the basic
cientific objectives of the Society and the contribution it should make to zoology and conservation and for this
ione he deserves the admiration and gratitude of ourselves.’

WEN OWEN
it Director of Administration

LORD ZUCKERMAN: AN APPRECIATION

lere must be many who wondered how and why a professor of anatomy became Chief Scientific Adviser to HM Government
id served so long in that capacity but their puzzlement would have survived only briefly if they had had the good fortune to
tet Lord Zuckerman. Without any conscious effort on his part, he dominated any company of which he was a member by his
tar-sightedness and the force of his intellect, which was softened always by his considerable charm. He was a man with a
wrous, innovative mind who was able to look at problems in any field freshly and analytically. uninfluenced by received
finion, and who was always fearless in expressing his views once he had made up his mind.

| met Lord Zuckerman first in 1970 when, as Chief Scientific Adviser, he became a member of the Committee of Inquiry into
bies and I was very fortunate to enjoy his friendship for the last quarter of his life. In 1970 he was about to retire. nominally,
'm his government appointment but he was still at the height of his powers and. although the committee included several
iner Very dm[inguiﬁhﬁj scientists, our discussions erl'l.'l.'H}"S took on a l'dfi?,t‘l‘ dimension when Lord Zuckerman was present. It
‘a5 then also that I became aware of vet another of his manifold talents as he supervised the drafting of our reports at every
lage,

A brief picture of Sir Solly Zuckerman, as he then was in 1970, shortly before he received the Society’s Gold Medal, may help
"2ive some indication of the range and scale of his activities. At the Zoological Society he was, of course, supreme by virtue of

Vil



his long and imaginative service, which Eirwen Owen, for many years the much admired administrator of the Soci
outlined in her tribute to him in the annual report on his retirement as President in 1984. By 1970 his association wi
Society had already lasted over 40 years and one of its first fruits had been his highly successful first book, The Social L
Monkeys and Apes (19 34), in which he described himself as anatomist to the Societ v. The 1960’s had seen the accomplishy -
of most of the comprehensive building programme conceived by Solly as Secretary and implemented with the aid of largy
donations from private sources as well as with some government assistance, all secured for the Society by his irresisi 1
combination of persuasion and charm. But he did not see his work as completed and he never regarded himself as g
menagerie entrepreneur. His major allegiance was to the Learned Society itself and he devoted himself to fostering its scien
work and prestige as well as its financial well-being for more than another decade: he was still in almaost daily attendan,
Regent's Park, despite his other commitments, and he knew personally virtually every employee of the sSociety.

At his other London base. in the Cabinet Office, Solly remained a highly influential figure when Edward Heath took o
from Harold Wilson as prime minister. His attempts to retire were politely ignored at first and, even when they were form _
successful on his elevation to the House of Lords in 1971, he continued to advise successive governments from within i

Cabinet Office until long after Mrs Thatcher had become premier. When I first knew him he was still sitting on innumerz!

commissions and committees and flying here and there for international consultations but he always found time to read
relevant papers before a meeting and, more importantly, to think through an original contribution to what was b

discussed. In the governmental sphere he will perhaps be remembered best for his radical views and advocacy on the subject

international arms control but it should not be forgotten that his two other major preoccupations as scientilic adviser »
with industrial research and development and the protection of the environment. in both of which fields he played:
pioneering role. The establishment by the Government in 1992 of an annual science and technology lecture in his name was
hitting tribute to the unique service that he had given over VEry many vears,

Despite these demanding activities, which would have been more than enough for most exceptional men, Lord Zuckern
found the time to pursue his own academic interests and he was still producing new books, with more to come, when hed
This was achieved from his third base, at the University of East Anglia, in the founding of which he had played a leading part
was he who wrote the blueprint for its school of environmental sciences and who obtained private funding for its internatio
seminars on environmental problems; and for seven yedrs he was its professor at large at a nominal salary. From there b
continued to write important papers such as Who speaks for Earth? (197 3) and Population and the Quality of Life (1974) a
books such as Nuclear Husion and Reality (1982) at a time when he was also preparing prestigious lectures such asi
Compton lectures at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology in 1972 and the Romanes lecture at Oxford in 1975,

Inevitably this catalogue of activity does less than justice to the whole personality of its subject. It might suggest that 5
Auckerman was a rather solemn man. unduly preoccupied with the cares of mankind, but he was far from that. I sh

remember most of all the sparkle of his company, his generosity and his conviviality as a host. His countless friends rangs

from the Gershwins, William Walton, Elisabeth Frink and Ben Nicholson to leaders and the less eminent in almost every ol
walk of life. For those of us who survive, his death has left a gaping void and it has deprived the Zoological Society of London
its greatest [riend and servant. In saluting him now and thanking him, we send our deep sympathy to his wife, Lady Joan, wh

shared over 50 happy years with him and who gave him steadfast support throughout those vears, whilst pursuing her ong

great talent as an artist.

SIR RONALD WATERHOUSE
(Vice President 1991-1992)
June 1993
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(EVIEW OF THE YEAR

I rRODUCTION
;;'r-.‘*-'E'LEE']“"“I media
k. sed on London Zoo as a result of the
. icion of Council on 16 June 1992 to
-.k:. London oo at the end of the season.
vembers of Council had become
reasingly alarmed at the fall in visitor
(mbers to the Zoo and despite a rigorous
4 cutting EXETCISE 1ht'j.' felt unable to

attention  was

& sinrain the de facto National Collection

vithout the shortfall in revenue being met
tm elsewhere. They were also anxious
- |.1dpp!.:u- the representative nature of
b Collection to such an extent that this
b duced visitor numbers further, exacer-
biling an already grave situation. Neither
b re they prepared to continue incurring
hoses at London Zoo and in turn put at

ek the Whipsnade estate, the Society's

b2 ior rechold asset.

LERE L T
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 was therefore on a recommendation
the Management Committee that the
tsion was made to close the Zoo on 30
pember 1992,

'he response from the media was pre-
taible, The majority of comment
nented the planned passing of such a
vered institution. Many of the more
ormed articles highlighted the loss to
nservation and the key role played by
' staff in participating in the captive
weding of endangered species.

'here was no official appeal for funds.
Wever the Emir of Kuwait donated to
tdoo £1M as a i-f.'“ from the children of
Uwait to the children of London. Council
tited the impact of this generous ges-
e and concluded. on 6 July, that whilst
1its own the gift did not change the
derlying financial difficulties which led
the elosure decision, it did place moral
F=sure on the Society to look further at

==

—

— =

survival options for the Zoo. Accordingly.
Professor Peter Jewell, who earlier in the
vear had melded the Society’s own plans
for the Zoo with those of a small group of
Fellows, kindly agreed to chair a work-
ing party, known as the London Zoo
Committee, to evaluate in all some eight
proposals which had been received.
The chair was later assumed by Mr
Barrington-Johnson. The Committees
recommendation to follow the proposals
set out in the Society s in-house plan. was
accepted by Council 15 October 1992,
The President had. however, announced
in September that following the Emir's
gift and an improvement in the financial
position ;_.{r:l'wr':L”jl.', the decision to close
the Zoo had been suspended in the expec-
tation that one of the options under evalu-
ation would prove viable and sustainable.

gy S J""-I——u.Jh_uﬂ&Jh_hr -I:;fj'r”{w‘]z
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London Zoo had been saved. The door was
also left open for joint venture schemes,
Discussion with New Zoo Developments
Limited (NZD), a company chaired by Mr
David Laing. to build and operate an
aquarium and a large format film theatre

continued throughout the second halfl of

the vear. On 7 April 1993, Council decided
to terminate further discussion with NZD
because the perceived linancial benefit was
inadequate.

Meanwhile, a small group of Zoo stafi

had formed the London Zoo Survival
Group whose aim was to keep the Zoo
open. A like-minded group of Fellows
sought to have the closure decision
rescinded.

Council called a General
Meeting on 13 July 1992 to explain to
Fellows the circumstances surrounding
decision. 212

Special

the closure

attended.

Fellows

ANNLIAIL
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A [urther meeting, called in response
to a requisition from sixty-nine
was held on 29 July to address two resol-
utions. The first, calling for the resig-
nations of the officers. Council members
and senior stafl who had been responsible
for the management of the Society’s affairs
which led to the closure decision. was
carried by 184 votes to 32 with 9 absten-
calling for
London Zoo to be kept open as a national
animal conservation centre,

Fellows.

tions, A second resolution,
was carried
| 57 votes to nil with 7 abstentions.

AS @ of the voting,
Council resolved to seek a vote of confi-
dence by holding a postal ballot of all the
Fellows. The result was declared on 14
September 1992, On a 55% poll. 441
[ 39%) voted in favour of the motion. 640
against. 5% of the

FL"-iI]l[ 'rllj'l. erse

[ 56%) voles were
invalid.

Council met on 23 September to con-
sider its position. The majority of those
members who had voted to close the Yoo
declared their intention to stand down.
This was announced to the Society at
the General Meeting on 30
September 1992, On legal advice and in
order to maintain continuity, a pro-
pramme of gradual replacement was
adopted. The Secretary. Sir Barry Cross
and The Treasurer, Mr Peter Holwell,
stood down on 9 December 1992, to be
replaced by Professor R McNeill Alexander
and Mr Peter Wrangham. The new
Council, with nine new members. was
finally in place by February 19493,

Annual

COUNCIL AND COMMITTEES

Council met on 15 occasions. The average
attendance was 64%. Individual attend-
ance was as follows:- Sir John Chapple 14
out of a possible 15; Professor R McNeill
Alexander 3/3; Sir Barry Cross 10/12: Mr
Peter Holwell 8/12; Mr Peter Wrangham
3/3: Mr John Barrington-Johnson 5/5:
Professor Patrick Bateson 1/8; Prolessor
David Bellamy 2/5; Dr Michael Brambell
4/4; Dr Stephen Cobb 5/6: Mr Geoflrey
Cutting 4/4; Mr John Edwards 15/15:
Professor Anthony Farmer 4/4; Professor
Richard Gardner 3/8; im
Halliday 5/7: Mr Peter Hardy 2/5: Pro-
fessor Mike Hassell 6/13; Professor Peter
Jewell 9/11; Professor John Krebs 1/4;
Professor Arthur Lucas 7/15; Sir William
McAlpine 5/8; Dr Anne McLaren 5/6:
Lord Marsh 7/12; Mr Nigel Martin
10/11: Mr Michael Moore 6/7: Professor
Malcolm Peaker 7/7: Mr Charles Perrin
7/9: Mr Martin Rowson 6/6: The Hon

Prolessor

1
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regrine Simon 1/1: Mr Nigel Sitwell4/7:
bi- Anthony Smith 3/15: Mr Colin Tudge
L = Mr Denis Tunnicliffe 4/6; Sir Ronald
serhouse 4/11: Mr lan Webb 4/4:
Fauncillor David Weeks 3/15: Mr Roger
bheater 4/11; Professor Arie Zuckerman
g [tis worth recording that in his three
b ar's service on Council. Mr Barrington-
§:hnson never missed a single meeting.
The Management Committee was
ound up in October 1992, In its place &
b-ries of supervisory committees was set

b1 each dedicated to one of the operating
bstons of the Society: London Zoo.
bihipsnade. and Conservation and Con-
b ltancy. The Institute of Zoology Com-
bittee, whose terms of reference were
boreed In @ Financial Memorandum
btween the Society and the University of
lndon in 1988, remained unaffected.
1 Loancil took direct responsibility for the
earned  Society. The new committees,
philst retaining their status within the
Lonstitution, were retitled ‘Boards™ to

s Brlect their business orientated approach
f 4 the tasks. Zoo Operations Limited
* . Besed trading on 30 September 1992,

q ¢ management responsibilities for the
4 nzoos reverting directly to the Society.
The London Zoo Committee was
traired  initially by Professor Peter
well but pressure of work obliged him

hand over to Mr Barrington-Johnson.
fillowing the Annual General Meeting.

e London Zoo Committee was reconsti-

td as the London Foo Board with
fofessor  Malcolm  Peaker becoming
khairman. He was joined by Mr John
iwards, Professor Mike Hassell and Mr

lin Tudge. The Whipsnade Board,

ader the chairmanship of Mr John
powles comprised Mr Christopher Marler

s MrNigel Martin, they were joined later

" Professor Tim Halliday, Professor
rthur Lucas and Mr lan Webb. Professor
Halliday also serves on the Conservation
ind Consultancy Board as chairman,
ither members being Dr Stephen Cobb,
Frofessor Anthony Farmer and Dr David

T : e .
licDonald. Professor Lucas, Principal of

hing's College, London, kindly agreed to
i the Education Committee in suc-
esion to Mr David Stanbury. Prolessor

neg Lanyon, Principal ol the Royal
: lerinary College, succeeded Prolessor
‘ichard Gardner as chairman of the
stitute ol Zoology Committee.

I W i =
Ihe Constitution
Wil II = 1 - 5
@ Ronald Waterhouse, a High Court
‘dge and a Vice President of the Society.,

chaired a working party on the Society s
Charter and Byelaws. The resulting draft
proposals were considered and approved
at the Annual General Meeting. The gen-
eral principal underlyving the change was
to make the Council more accountable
whilst removing the ambiguities in the
existing Charter and Byelaws. Sir Ronald
stood down in December, to be replaced by
the Hon Peregrine Simon QC. Competitive
tenders were invited from eight legal firms
to undertake the drafting associated with
the new constitution including the need
to have the proposals approved by the
Fellowship and. ultimately, the Privy
Council.

The Government

Responsibility for the Society’s Regent's
Park site transferred to the new Depart-
ment of National Heritage as successor to
the Department of the Environment.

Meetings were held during the vear
with Ministers and with officials to keep
them apprised of the Soclety’s position,
The Government asserts that the only
relationship it has with the Society is of
landlord and tenant, despite [requent
attempts by the Society to point out 1ts
national signilicance.

However, following the shift in responsi-
bility between the two Departments, a
softening in the attitude of the Govern-
ment towards the Society has been
detected. No longer is there any mention
of the Zoo leaving Regent's Park,
although as yet there has been no tangible
evidence as to how the Government may
convert its affiection for the Society into
inancial or similar support.

Towards the end of the year dis-

cussions commenced on the renewal of

the lease, which expires in 19495, forall 36
acres of the Regent's Park site.

The Royal Parks Review and Local
Amenity Groups

Dame Jennifer Jenkins, chairman of the
Review Committee, visited the Zoo. as
subsequently, did the rest of the Com-
mittee. The Director of London Zoo and
the Clerk to the Council later gave evi-
dence to the Committee, stressing the
Society’s desire to incorporate in its plans
the views of local residents and to improve
the aesthetic relationship between the Zoo
grounds and Regent’s Park. The Society
became a corporate member of ‘The
Friends of Regent’s Park’. The Meeting
Rooms have on several occasions been
put at the disposal of the Friends for
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informative talks and for their Annual
General Meeting.

One aspect of their interest in the Zoo
which is displaved by the specialist
Amenity Groups, concerns its unigue
architecture. Conducted tours behind the
scenes for students and enthusiasts
have been held from time to time and in
February 1993, the Roval Commission on
the Historic Buildings of England pub-
lished a comprehensive record of the Zoo's
architecture in “The Buildings of London
Zoo’, Lord Snowdon kindly agreed to be
photographed in the Snowdon Aviary
to promote the book and the official
launch was held later in the month in the
Elephant House.

Lord Zuckerman

While this report was being compiled. the
death was announced of Lord Zuckerman
whose name had become synonymous
with that of the Society. An appreci-
ation of Lord Zuckerman is given at the
beginning of this report.

Obituaries

The Council records with deep regret the
deaths of Mr William H Chippendale, OBE,
Corresponding Member: Dr D. W. Evans,
Corresponding Member; Prolessor Dr
Heine Hediger. Corresponding Member:
Dr William Straus, Junior, Corresponding
Member: Dr Maurice Burton, Scientific
Fellow: Dr Vera Fretter, Scientific Fellow:
Professor Richard Denison Purchon, Life
Scientific Fellow: Dame Janet Vaughan,
Selentific Fellow: Viscount Massereene
and Ferrard, Ordinary Fellow.

THE MEMBERSHIP

At the end of the subscription vear (31
December 1992 ) there were 2, 106 Fellows
and 2.215 Associates. including 88
Student Associates,

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting was held on
30 September 1992 with the President,
Field Marshal Sir John Chapple, in the
Chair.

In accordance with Article 12 of the
Charter Sir John Chapple (appointed in
March 1992 as President to fill the casual
vacancy created by the resignation of Pro-
fessor N A Mitchison) retired from office.
In accordance with Article 10 of the
Charter and Byelaw 25. the following
Fellows retired as Ordinary Members of
the Council: Mr ] Barrington-Johnson and
The Hon Sir William McAlpine (Ordinary
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Fellows): Professor PP P G Bateson, Pro-
fessor R L Gardner and Professor A ]
Zuckerman (Scientific Fellows).

In accordance with Articles 11 and 12
of the Charter and Byelaw 26 Sir John
Chapple was elected as President and the
following Fellows were elected Members
of Council: Mr M Moore and Mr N Sitwell
(Ordinary Fellows): Professor TR Halliday,
Professor M Peaker and Mr C H Tudge
(Scientific Fellows). The following Fellows,
appointed to fill the casual vacancies
created in July 1991 and March 1992,
were also elected: Mr ] C Edwards, The Rt
Hon The Lord Marsh, Mr N 8 E Martin, Mr
C ] Perrin and Mr R | Wheater (Ordinary
Fellows); Professor A M Lucas (Scientific
Fellow).

The President presented the following
awards made in 1991 for contributions to
zoology:

The Prince Philip Prize (for an account of
practical work involving some aspect of
animal biology, by a pupil under 19 years
old of a school in the United Kingdom)|
to Miss Louise R Kilbee, of Sir Roger
Manwood's School. Sandwich. for her
essay 'An  investigation Into equine
helminthiasis’, and to her Headmaster a
certificate recording the award.

The Thomas Henry Huxley Award (for
original work submitted as a doctoral
thesis) to Dr F D Reavey. of the University
of York, for his thesis “The feeding ecology
and behaviour of caterpillars’.

The Scientific Medal (for distinguished
work in zoology by scientists under 40
vears of age) to Dr B | Finlay, of the Insti-
tute of Freshwater Ecology at Ambleside,
for research into the physiological ecology
of protozoans and their bacterial sym-
bionts. The President also announced the
award of a second Scientific Medal for
1991, to Dr A E Keymer of the University
of Oxford. for her broad-ranging work on
the ecology. immunology and evolutionary
biology of parasites.

The Zoological Society of London Frink
Medal for British Zoologists (for significant
and original contributions by professional
#oologists to the development of zoology in
its wider implications) to Professor R A
Hinde, CBE. FRS, of the University of
Cambridge. for his many outstanding con-
tributions to the biological study of animal
and human behaviour.

4

The Zoological Socicty of London Marsh
Award for Conservation Biology (for con-
tributions of fundamental science to the
conservation of animal species and habi-
tats). awarded to Professor B M May, FRS,
of the University of Oxford, for his seminal
studies in population biology and ecology,
was presented by Mr Brian P Marsh on
behall of the Marsh Christian Trust, the
donors of the award.

Mr Marsh also presented cheques
donated by the Marsh Christian Trust to
the Prince Philip Prize winner's school
and to the recipient of the Thomas Henry
Huxley Award.

The President announced that The
Silver Medal (for contributions to the
understanding and appreciation ofzoology.
including such activities as public edu-
cation in natural history and wildlife con-
servation) had been awarded to Dr Jane
Goodall, for her pioneering contributions
and continuing efforts to achieve under-
standing of the biology, behaviour and
conservation of the great apes and other
primates: it would be presented at a later
date.

Awards and Honours

Council announced the following awards
made in 1992 for contributions to zoology
(the terms of the awards are given above
where the presentation of the previous
vear's awards is reported):

The Thomas Henry Huxley Award to [
Anite  Malhotra of the
Aberdeen. for her thesis “What causes

geographic variation: a case study of

Anolis oculatus’.

The Stamford Raflles Award (for dis-
tinguished work by an amateur zoologist)
to Ly | 1D Summers-Smith., for world-
renowned work on sparrows.

The Scientific Medal to Dir N H Barton of the
University of Edinburgh, for contributions
o quantitative population genetics.

The Society's Frink Medal for British
Zoologists to Professor Sir Brian Follett,
FRS. of the University of Bristol, for con-
tributions to the
photoperiodism.

The Society’s Marsh Award for Conser-
vation Biology to Dr D A Ratcliffe. for his
work on bird conservation and for his role
in the discovery of the effects of pesticides
on wild populations.

University of

understanding of

Professor E O Wilson of Harvard Upjy,.
sity, eminent as an authority on the g,
behaviour of insects and a founder of '_
theory of island biogeography and
illlHliﬁi‘i:]‘.ll:il'u_' ol H1n;'inhi.::n!ng),', was ela :
an Honorary Fellow.,

At a meeting of Council on 9 Deceryl- §

1 992 the President presented the Socies
Medal to Dr H Edward Kennedy in re 2
nition of his services to the Society and,
science,

Dr Kennedy, President of BIOSIS |}
logical Abstracts) in Philadelphia,
instrumental in negotiating the Zoole
cal Record Agreement. signed in 195
whereby BIOSIS and the Society unds.
took to co-operate in the publication
this unique bibliography. The Soce
wished to record its appreciation of |
determination Dr Kennedv had show
in securing the continuation of
;"':l."l.:'nl-: '!Tnii'nh!.ll Record, a
inestimable value to zoologists worldw

publication

Amendments to the Regulations
The Resolutions to increase the ann
subscriptions for Fellows and Associa
from 1 January 1993 were agreed al
Annual General Meeting of the Soc
held on 30) September 1992,

The consequential amendments to
Regulations, which were passed
Council, are given toAppendix 6.

PERSOMNNEL

At 31 March 1993 there were 313 lu
time, permanent staff emploved by 1he
society.

[t is a mark of the dedication and pr
lessionalism of the staff that even with i
seemingly certain closure of London £
scheduled for the end of the season. th
z00 continued to run as usual. Dr Jo Gipp
formerly Curator of London Zoo, was A
ing Director during the difficult summe
months. He introduced regular bulletis
for staff to supplement the establish
communications systems such as Tedl
Briefings and the Joint Consultative Cor
mittee. Dr Gipps was confirmed in post &
Director in January.

David Jones was appointed Direct®
of the Conservation and Consultand
Division which was established in M
1992 to further the Society’s wont
OVErseas.

The Chief Executive at Whipsna®
Andrew Forbes, left the Society to furth
his career in the leisure industry and W&
replaced in January by Stuart Earley. T
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- also saw the departure of Professor
o Flint who had been Director of
qce for five vears. Dr Geoflrey Smit his

—ently Acting Director of Science.

iher changes at senior level included
appointment  of Nick
-tor and Frances Sutton as Develop-
qt Manager at Whipsnade, Sharon

Lindsay as

Awards

In the examinations lor the City and
Guilds Certificate in Zoo Animal Manage-
ment seven candidates were successiul:
Mr M R Brett, Ms A | Ferguson. Mr D B |
Fisher, Mr M S Fitzpatrick, Ms | W
Ossowski, Ms | Pardoe, Mr 8 Young

AMNUDAIL REPLORIT
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Coates; Mr H 5 Osborne; Mr E Tong; Mr A
G C Broad: Mr L Powell, The death was
announced, whilst in the United States. ol
Barklev Hastings, Supervisor of the Post-
graduate Veterinary Training Course at
Whipsnade.

; ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
| ment as Marketing Manager at London Council wishes to record its appreciation
h Ann Svlph as Librarian. Peter Lepartures and Retirements af the work of those Fellows who serve on
flumphreys as the Society s Inlormation Mr P Turp, Senior Technician (17); ‘T“t the advisory committees and boards, and
| .-:'Fi.llll.i1:|F."|.I'|Li'l'l.“|.'|'|..I.Illl.1'=3lll.-'l‘\.||:':-!:|.II{ Nutkins, Administrative Assistant(17); Dr of the continued support and help
feproductive Biology Group in Lthe H Moore, Head of Reproductive Biology received from many  individuals and
Latitute of Zoology. Group (14); Mr R Fish, Librarian (33). AT
451 @ \irs Carol Boroughs. Head of Personnel, Figures in brackets denote number ol :
esecond in the ‘Personnel Manager of years of service,
b Year' competition. She had been
: ninated by colleagues. This reflected
outstanding  professionalism when Obituaries
ing with the redundancy programme We regret to record the deaths of the
closure threat. following pensioners: Mr W White: Mr L
|
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SCIENTIFIC ACTIVITIES

RESEARCH

THE INSTITUTE OF ZOOLOGY

Professor A P F Flint, whe joined the
Society's staff in September 1987, left at
the end of February 1993 to take the
Chair of Animal Physiology at the Univer-
sity of Nottingham. As Director of Science
he established two new research groups
(Conservation Genetics and Ecology). His
successor is now being sought. When
appointed he will, together with the Insti-
tute of Zoology Management Committee,
determine the future scientific policy of the
[nstitute in the face of current financial

constraints.

ECOLOGY

The aims of this research group are (1) to
study the behavioural. evolutionary and
conservation ecology of animal popu-
lations in the wild and in captivity. and
(2] to integrate theory and empirical data
to improve our understanding of indi-
vidual strategics and their demographic
CONSeqUences.

Still only in its second year, the group
continued to build on its initial loundation.
All of the five projects described in last
vear's report (Cheetah and interspecific
competition: kin selection and
lation demography of African Wild dogs:
evolution of multi-queen ant societies:

ML~

selection for disease resistance in sSoay
sheep: heritability of sexually selected
traits) are now partly funded by external
grants. These include four grants from
the Roval Society, one from National
Geographic and one from the Natural
Environment Research Council Wildlife
Disease Special Topic (collaborative with
Zoology, Cambridge).

Our interest in selection for disease
resistance and its demographic conse-
quences was extended this year by a
new project on the serology of rabies in
domestic dogs and transmission of the
disease to wildlife in northern Tanzania.
Supported by the Agricultural and Food
Research Council. through a Veterinary
Research Fellowship. together with equip-
ment and consumables from the Overseas
Development Administration (ODA), this
research includes the collection of blood
and saliva samples from dogs living in
settlements close to the Serengeti National
Park. where precipitous declines in the
numbers of Bat-eared foxes and of the
endangered African Wild dog are thought
to be due to rabies.

[

Another major new initiative this vear
concerns research on biodiversity and
endemism. This work will assess (1) the
extent and scale of endemic congruence
across taxa, cg, by quantifyving how far

endemic bird areas predict centres of

endemism in butterflies and Howering
plants, (2) how the extent of endemism
corresponds with other measures of bio-
diversity, including species richness, (3}
how arca-based assessment of conser-
vation priorities overlaps with priorities
derived from  population
genetics, and (4) how the current distri-

biology and

bution of conservation effort, driven by

conservation of endangered .”“H_ﬂ‘hip.

species compares with the distribution of

indices of biological diversity.

Recent advancesin the theory of extine-
tion times for species provided new routes
towards an objective assessment of extine-
tion risks in wild species, even when popu-
lation data are limited. In collaboration
with IUCN and CITES, members of the
group have been working oul new pro-
posals for the definition and assessment of
categories of threat.

CONSERVATION GENETICS

Over the past vear, the Conservation
Genetics Group has succeeded in devel-
oping expertise in new molecular genetic
approaches and has established a foun-
dation of extramural grant support. We
have begun to publish the results of our
newly established research programme in
scientific journals. Our general soals
remain to investigate evolutionary pro-
cesses such as speciation. extinction, in-
breeding and genetic drilt and to apply
molecular genetic technigues toimportant
problems in biological conservation.

We have been fortunate to receive two
sizeable grants from the Natural Environ-
ment Research Council (NERC). one to
study genetic diversity among ecotone and
centrally located birds of the Cameroon
rainforest and the other to investigate the
population differences among colonies of
British Grey seals. This research promises
to provide new insights into the factors
that determine how genetic variation is
structured in natural populations and
involves the use of sophisticated new
molecular techniques.

We have received two grants from the
European Community, The largest,
amounting to over a million ECUs, is a
collaboration with four Furopean groups
and concerns the development and appli-
cation of new molecular technigues to

measure genetic variation in domes
natural populations. The second B( 5
is focused on an examination of 2
variability in the highly endapg.
Mediterranean Monk seal and g
document the degree of genetic g
entiation among the
populations. Other support has
obtained to study genetic diversity of
(NERC), '
Nature Conservation Bureaun g
Scottish Wildeats (Scottish Natural
tage ) and reproductive success in byl
(The National Science Foundation 1
O a technical front, we have suces

scattered ey

systematics of bustards

in identifyving hypervariable nuclear
in several animal species that can be
to dissect, on a iner geographic scale
ever before, the genelic structun
variability of closely related populat
We have submitted what may be the
report documenting variability in
hypervariable loci in two species of H
nosed wombats. One of these species
wombat,

most endangered mammal in Aust

Northern Hairv-nosed
and our results have shown an alar
decrease in the level of Fenetc vansh
We have developed a new expertis
DNA sequencing. a prerequisite for d
high resolution population and sys
atic studies and have recently sequer
regions from the rapidly evolving m
chondrial genome totalling over se
thousand base pairs.

Our eflorts are beginning to bear
and we have scientific
appearing on DNA fingerprints in buil

articles s
flies and baboons, mitochondrial Db
sequences of canids. and  variation
colonizing populations of Gall wasps.
|i|”L'r‘ﬂlll'.l:l.'HIiII'III]iIFi'.-'J!_'H:-l".'d']'.'il'.'l!‘ill"“
on an intriguing invasion of Gall was
from their native range in Hungary |
western Europe and Britain. The invas
has occurred over the past 250 years
involved sequential founding of p
lations by small numbers of individua®
The genetic l.'i'l:q'lll'i.-'_l"i associated with
recent invasion are striking and promis!
provide an important precedent for fulur
theoretical and empirical studies, The !
vear promises to be extremely prodic
tive as many other new projects re
completion.

REPRODUCTIVE BIOLOGY

The aims of the Group are to advi

knowledge ol fundamental mechanisim

reproductive biology with the Lt
goalsof: 1) Facilitating the developmen'

e
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hnology for the conservation of animal
diversity both in captivity and in the wild
o4 2) Establishing how environmental
hange influences reproduction.
rhe Group has continued to build on its
rlier scientific successes with the estab-
§iment of a number of new projects and
¥ award of additional research grants.
tunding for the Group includes a £1.5M
gini Research Councill MRC/AFRC Pro-
kamme Grant in Developmental and
beproductive  Biology over hive years,
|!--.“- additional substantial Project
=nis from the AFRC. five Research
Cuncil PhD studentships and further
ject grant funds of over L1/4 million
m the Wellcome, MAFF and MLC.
The Head of the Group. Dr Harry
lioore, left in October to take up a Chair
4 the University of Sheffield and was
placed by Dr Andrew Loudon.

Physiological Ecology
Echavioural and physiological aspects of
enroductive suppression were studied in
e Naked Mole-rat. In socially suppressed,
pon-preeding males. spermatogenesis was
fmpaired. During a field trip to southern
frica, studies on six species of African
Wole-rat (one previously undescribed)
telded ecological data and samples for the
Puestigation of mating systems and the
iclation between social group size and
rirg-group genetic variability.
Continuing studies of the interaction
eiween hormones and seasonal p]‘mlu-
perindic change in controlling sexual
tchaviour in Red deer have important

Wolications for captive breeding, because
diempts to induce oestrous behaviour

nd mating in exotic species frequently
bil. Further investigations included a
gy of the possible mechanisms under-
lingthe skewing in sex ratiowhich occurs
N wild Red deer and is correlated with
dal status. The time of ovulation after
progesterone  decline occurred later in
arling than adult animals and we are
"W investigating whether social rank
nfuences the pattern of ovarian develop-
Nt and  steroid hormone  secretion
liring the oestrous cycle and in early
‘egnancy. Individual differences in ster-
i secretion pattern may account for a
“ective loss of embryos and skewing in
“rth sex ratio.

|r:'hniqm.-.~. developed for the culture of
"iole hair follicles and follicular dermal
“pillary cells from Red deer will help to
“itidate the role of hormones and local
ors in the control of seasonal and

sexual hair growth and also have broader
implications for the regulation of annual
cyecles in mammals. The binding of andro-
gens to cultured dermal papillary cells
was related to mane growth in the male.

Studies on melatonin binding, photo-
periodic history and prolactin secretion in
female Bennett's wallabies, furthered our
understanding of the ontogeny of season-
ality and the role of prolactin in the
control of reproduction in marsupials.

Studies on Syrian hamsters indicated
that a single gene defect of the daily (cir-
cadian) biological clock has a widespread
effect on a range of different time-keeping
ProCesses.

Endocrinology

Many pregnancies fail in wvery early
gestation. In ruminants. a kev event in the
establishment of pregnancy is the pro-
duction by the developing conceptus of
chemical signals which influence the
mother's hormonal state. Our work has
emphasised the importance of uterine
hormone receptors, and their effects on
the actions of uterine hormones. In rumi-
nants, the oxytocin receptor (OTR ) holds
the key to the establishment of pregnancy,
its activity in the uterus being controlled
by embryvonic interferon.

Studies of the maternal recognition of
pregnancy insheepdemonstrated a key role
for the oxytocin receptor. The sheep OTR
was cloned and the message was localised
to the luminal epithelium of the endo-
metrium. Trophoblast interferon exerted
its antiluteolytic action by inhibiting
expression of the OTR and this effect
was demonstrated to be due to protein
kinase C.

In collaborative studies, the prolactin
receptor cDNA from Red deer was cloned.
Briefly, this was accomplished by means
of rat primers, designed from conserved
regions within the prolactin receptor
cDNA., in polymerase chain reactions
(PCR) with Red deer liver cDNA. The iso-
lated PCR product was then used to probe
a cDNA library prepared from Red deer
liver tissue and two clones were isolated
(0.8 and 4.0kb). These clones are now
being sequenced and initial results suggest
that the 4.0 kb clone encodes the full pro-
lactin receptor message. Future work will
investigate the seasonal expression of the
receptor gene and hence improve our
understanding of the regulation of annual
cycles in mammals.

" Research on artificial insemination (Al),
embryo transfer and in-vitro fertilization

WU A REPFORT
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continued in relation to conservation
breeding programmes.

We investigated possible genotypic
¢flects on conception rate of European
Fallow deer after oestrous synchronisation
and Al with European or Mesopotamian
Fallow deer spermatozoa. Genotype had
no effect on conception rate, differences
being mainly due to differences in the
freezing capacity of the spermatozoa of
the two subspecies. We also investigated
Alter
superovulation, a high proportion of
embryos (46"%) were recovered and trans-

1'Jt1ht'}.'u transfer in Fallow deer

ferred. with an overall conception rate of
5549%. Current studies on ooCyLe collection
from superovulated females will be invalu-
able in future breeding management of
rare captive ungulates,

In a study of ovarian function and the
maintenance ol pregnancy in primates we
identified the presence of a luteolytic
agent (prostaglandin F, ) which was
found to require cell contact to exert its
action. The time course of luteolysis may
depend upon changing responsiveness of
second messengers such as protein kinase
C to the action of prostaglandin.

The protein hormone inhibin, which is
produced by the COrpus
luteum, mav play a role in the establish-
ment of pregnancy and act as an early
pregnancy marker. We demonstrated
differential control of inhibin and pro-
gesterone production by marmoset luteal
cells in response to chorionic gonado-
trophin (CG) and PGF,, produced by the
embryo.

IMArMOse

Gamete Biology and Early Embryonic
Development

A human gene, the homologue of which
was identified as being expressed early in
rat spermatogenesis, was sequenced and
shown tocode for a transcription factor. 1ts
precise role in testicular function is yet to
be established. The serine-protease inhibi-
tor molecule implicated in mammalian
sperm-egg binding was localised to a pre-
cise region of the spermatozoon. suggest-
ing a role in regulating the acrosome
reaction. important in fertilization. Cul-
ture of epididvmal segments from a mar-
supial, the Grey Short-tailed opossum,
demonstrated synthesis and secretion of
different proteins down the length of the
duct. In eutherian mammals this is
related to sperm maturation. The research
programme aims to elucidate fundamen-
tal mechanisms relating to fertilization
but may also reveal the extent to which

¢
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heterogeneity in spermatozoan popu-
lations plays a role in sperm selection and
sperm competition in mammals.

Work related to the role of the maternal
and paternal genome in  development
showed that unfertilised marmoset cocytes
could be stimulated to divide by ethanol
exposure or electrical stimulation. Ethanol-
activated parthenogenetic embrvos devel-
oped to 16 cells in vitro, but electrically-
activated haploid embryos developed to
only four cells. It was possible to per-
form pronuclear transfer by micromanipu-
lation ol one-cell marmoset embryos.
After such transfer, control embryos { both
parental genomes restored) developed to
eight cells in vitro. It was possible to create
uniparental marmoset embrvos, which
developed to at least six cells in vitre, The
research provides fundamental infor-
mation which will be of value in future
embryo transfer programmes in primates.

Cryomicroscopy and fluorescence micros-
copy wasused to measure the permeability
idamage) of the sperm plasma membrane
during cryopreservation. Increased per-
meability was induced by freezing per se
and by the hyperosmotic environments
induced by the crystallisation of water
from solution. Computer-assisted sperm
motility assessment was used in an effort
to relate sperm quality to fertility, Two
major fertility trials in domestic pigs gave
encouraging results. Broader applications
from this work include an improvement
in understanding of the preservation
of semen from non-domesticated and
endangered species.

COMPARATIVE MEDICINE

Applied Immunology

The research has been concentrated on
parasitic organisms and the diseases they
cause in man and animals. The successful
development of immuno-tests for malaria
parasites and their antigens was followed
up by field trials in Columbia (S. America),
Alrica and Asia. A simple colour test for
the diagnosis of human and canine leish-
maniasis (a deforming disease) was tried
out in the Sudan, Pakistan and Somalia.
similar colour tests to identify the insect
vectors of disease by determining the ani-
malspecies from which ingested blood was
derived have been used in Nigeria, Ghana,
Zimbabwe and other tropical locations,

Microbiology
Necrobacillosis. a potentially fatal disease
ol many species, including macropods,

)

deer and antelopes. is caused by Fuso-
bacterivm necrophorum (FN), an anaerobic
bacterium inhabiting the alimentary tract
of normal animals. Infection of the body

surface results from the contamination of

small wounds with faeces containing FN
and earlier work showed that fusobac-
terial infectivity was greatly enhanced by
the normal faecal microflora. It has recently
become clear that FN is commonly present
in the rumen of cattle and in the saccu-
lated (rumen-like) portion of the wallaby
stomach but, surprisingly, is excreted in
the faeces of only a small proportion of
cattle, wallabies and deer. Accumulating
evidence suggests that digestive disturb-
ance, which interferes with the normal
intestinal microflora. leads to intestinal
multiplication and faecal excretion of FN,
thereby providing a source ofinfection. This
suggestion, il conhrmed, will assist in the
managemental control of necrobacillosis,
a disease for which there is no effective
vaccine because the main virulence fac-
tors of the causative organism are only
weakly immunogenic,

Examination of human FN strains
showed that the term ‘necrobacillosis’ as
used in human and veterinary medicine
refers to discases that differ in important
respects. Unlike pathogenic animal strains,
all human strains examined except one
were insusceptible to infectivity enhance-
ment by Staphylococcus aurens. The excep-
tional strain, although susceptible to
infectivity enhancement. differed from ani-
mal strains in its clinical and pathological
effects.

Type C botulism is a common cause of
mortality in gulls in the UK. A survey of
19 landfills showed that > 60% were con-
taminated with Clostridium botulinum type
C (and D) spores. This high degree of con-
tamination was not reflected in refuse
belore dumping. The frequent presence of
type D was surprising and inexplicable.
Type A, which though very rare in the
British environment caused a dramatic
outbreak of human botulism in 1922 ithe
‘Loch Maree disaster’), was found in the
intestine of a gull,

VETERINARY SCIENCE

Diseases of Zoo Animals

The clinical cases treated during the vear
at Regent's Park and Whipsnade were, as
ever, diverse and varied. The female Giant
panda ‘Ming Ming' spent several weeks at
the Animal Hospital undergoing intensive
treatment of bite wounds inflicted by ‘Bao

Bao® at their first introduction, A vy,
Musk ox with a fractured '”t'h'l;':._r;'_%
(front leg) was successfully trezge
Whipsnade. Colleagues from the g,
Veterinary College assisted in the inveq, ...
gation ol several cases, including 1y

Cheetahs with a malabsorption syndrog, j
Studies of spongiform encephalopa,
in zoo animals are continuing, Six of |
Society’s Greater kudu have died with th
disease. These include fve out of the eigki r
born at Regent's Park since 19587, Tl
pattern of incidence suggests that thefg
kudu are very susceptible and also iha B i
in contrast to BSE in cattle, transmiss 0
oceurs between individuals. \
Toxoplasmosis was diagnosed i
cause of death in several free-ranging Red Bit

necked wallabies at Whipsnade and se
logical surveys indicated that exposure 1 iy
this protozoal infection is relatively com R
mon. Further investigations of this diseas ' p
are planned.

Wildlife Diseases o
It has been suggested that hyperplas: §iab
tabnormal growth) of the cortex of the Bk

adrenal glands in some marine mamm

may be associated with accumulatior
chlorinated hvdrocarbons in these ani
mals. A study of adrenal cortical volume §i
in relation to blubber chlorinated hydro- Blou
carbon concentrations was carried out [r
part of the Marine Mammal project in 25 B
Harbour porpaise carcases, The [:lr:*|:|' d
nary results suggest that there was |

signiticant correlation. ha
In recent yvears there has been 20 fnn
increase in the number of reports of mas @
mortality incidents in common frogs. A
project was initiated to study these. It i
many cases severe skin ulceration wa g
observed and the causes of these and other B,
lesions are under investigation. 0
HK

SCIENTIFIC MEETINGS,
SYMPOSIA AND SEMINARS §-
The year's programme of Scientific Mest- B
ings aimed, as always. to cover a wide d- fun
versity ol topics. Eight meetings were held
‘Predator-prey interactions in Antarcticd [l
in April, "0Oil pollution in the Gulf: has [ac @ o
matched prediction’ in May and "Consert- ey
ing butterflies” in June. The next sessot oy,
opened with ‘Canids: origins, relatio @ T
ships, ecology and behaviour’, and co s
tinued with ‘Cnidarian symbiosis’. ‘Par @iy
conservation’, ‘Hot & cold running watcr oy
the biology of power station cooling water
and 'Survival strategies of migrating bircs - | exp
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The Society is extremely grateful to all the
cakers and chairmen who took part in
i r,ml_::rmnmu:. Meetings continued to
- Jude a short contribution from mem-
L of the Institute of Zoology on current
'r.H..;,,L-h projects, though the customary
wrts on the animal collections were
sented only occasionally.
fwo Symposia were held during the
.ar. The first was "Recent advances in
arine mammal science’. held in April
dorganized by Dr 1 L Boyd of the British
iptarctic Survey. The second. held in
atember and organized by Dr R C Tinsley
Oueen Mary & Westfield College, was on
he biology of Xenopus'. The Society
armly thanks the organizers, who also
it the proceedings of the meetings, and
the speakers from both the UK and
erseas who took part, in many cases
aviding their own travel funds. Thanks
also due to the organizations who pro-

ey

.

vded grants to help defray the costs: the
val Society, who supported both meet-
ps: Merck Sharp & Dohme Research
noratories and Singer Instruments,

who supported the Xenopus meeting.

PUBLICATIONS
wurnal of Zoology
wing the year, twelve parts of the
urnal of Zoology were published—Irom
iume 226 Part 4 to Volume 229 Part
contalning a total of 167 papers.
iese spanned, as always, an immense
ange of animal groups and biological
dsciplines. *One of the strengths of the
urmal of Zoology,' remarked a reader, ‘is
5 variety’ and his views. expressed by
any others, reflect the importance of a
weneral zoological journal in promoting the
teraction of knowledge and exemplifying
diversity in publication.
lhe number of papers submitted from
over the world continues to be high.
nearty 300 this year, and entails a rejec-
lon rate currently approaching 50%. The
iurden of assessment and selection falls
I the many referees who generously
“i5t the Society, and on the Publications
ommittee, The Editor and Council are
seeply grateful to them all for their
valuable work.
The Journal continues to contribute sig-
acantly to the Society's income. The extent
"which it does so is not always apparent
“im the Annual Accounts, where its
mofitability has often been obscured by
“penditure set against it which relates to

other Society activities undertaken by the
Publications Department.

SYmposia
Volume No. 64 in the Series Symposia of
the Zoological Society of London was pub-
lished during the year by Oxford Univer-
sity Press: this was "Biotechnology and
the conservation of penetic diversity’,
edited by H D M Moore, W V Holt and G M
Mace of the Institute of Zoology. Sales of
the series, from which the Society receives
rovalties, continue at a steady level and
provide a source of income which enables
the Society to hold the international
meetings which these volumes record.
Academic Press, formerly joint pub-
lishers with the Society of the Symposia
series, decided in 1992 to discontinue
selling backstock. The Society has a small
supply of most of these volumes (Nos 1-
52, published in the vears 1960 to 1984 ),
which will be sold at reduced prices.

Zoological Record

Indexing for Volume 128 was completed
at theend of June 1992 with 67,895 items
indexed, resulting in 77.175 citations in
the final volume. These items were
obtained by scanning 6,937 serials and
1,731 books.

Indexing for Volume 129 is on schedule
for completion at the end of June.

Towards the end of 1992 it became
necessary to make most of the Data Entry
staff in York redundant in order to ensure
that BIOSIS UK financial targets in 1993
could be met. As a direct result all index-
ing in York was transferred to the existing
data entry system: those indexers based at
the British Museum (Matural History)
continue to prepare mss for data entry in
York until the new PC-based system
becomes available in 1993,

The amount of material available for
indexing increased during the vear,
reversing the trend in the last two or three
years. No clear reasons for this fluctuation
have been established, although it would
appear that there may have been a
roughly five-year cycle over much of the
history of Zoological Record since 156+,

The potential availability in the longer
term of material scanned for the Record,
began to be a matter for concern. The
British Library Document Supply Centre
whose holdings form the major source af
present, along with many other libraries
has been forced by economic conditions to
make significant reductions in its stock in
the last few years, which is now beginning

ANNUAL
EL e

KEFORKI
] & & %

to aflect the serials covered by the
Record.

The new production system being devel-
oped for Zoological Record is on schedule,
The main system in York will be linked to a
smaller network for BIOSIS UK staft at the
British Museum ( Natural History), and also
to another new SYsIem being developed
by BIOSIS in Philadelphia for Biological
Abstracts. Considerable time has been spent
working towards compatibility between
the UK and US svstems, although initially
this will be limited to the bibliographic
elements of serial publications.

BIOSIS staff in York and Philadelphia
have collaborated in the development of a
CD-ROM version of Zoclogical Record to be
released in late 199 3. The first edition will
include all volumes from 115 to 129, and
will then be updated at six-monthly inter-
vals. Significant effort has been putinto the
preparation of a new Subject Thesaurus,
combining and consolidating the different
indexing vocabularies which have been
used over the last twelve vears, which it is
hoped will assist non-specialist users.

RIOSIS UK staff are now responsible for
the running of all training courses for
all BIOSIS products, including Zoelogical
Record, in the UK, and for the operation of
the Furopean Help Desk which provides
support for those products throughout
Europe.

BIOSIS UK and the Zoological Society
continued their collaboration with the
International Commission on Zoeological
Nomenclature. under the auspices of
IUBS., to develop a List of Available Generi
Names in Zoology.

Thanks are again due to the Director
General for Science. Technology and
Industry at the British Library Document
Supply Centre. Boston Spa, and to the
Director of the British Museum (Natural
History) for accommodation and support
given to the staff of the Zoological Record.

International Zoo Yearbook

Volume 31 of the International Zoo Year-
book was published in December 1992
The 22 papers in Section 1, ‘Australasian
fauna’. commissioned with the help of
John DeJose. director of Perth Zoo, provide
a good overview of the work of Australian
and New Zealand zoos in helping to con-
serve the region's unigue fauna. The 23
papers in ‘New developments in the zoo
world’, range from a study on Arctic hish
and invertebrates to the maintenance of
the Arabian Tahr in Oman, and include a
useful selection of papers on the primates,
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with particular emphasis on the gorilla.
The data on breeding of vertebrates in
zoos cover 1990 and the census of rare
animals in captivity was taken at 1
January 1992, The special topic for
Section 1 of Volume 3 1. currently in prep-
aration, is 'Ungulates’. The section con-
centrates heavily on threatened ungulate
species. with a number of papers on
reintroduction and conservation in situ,
as well as L":li'l-[i'l.'r." management and be-
havioural studies. Fourteen papers have
been accepted for the section ‘New
developments in the zoo world'.

The reference section includes the bi-
ennial list of zoos and aquaria of the
world, the list of vertebrates bred in 1991,
the census of rare species in captivity at 1
January, 1992, which for the first time
include some invertebrate species, and the
summary of international studbooks and
world registers.

The editor, P | 8 Olney, continues his
work as co-ordinator of international
studbooks. Owver 120 species are now

covered by the international studbooks
which are an essential tool in managed-
species programmes,

LIBRARY

Reg Fish, Librarian for the past 33 vears
retired in July 1992. He was replaced by
Miss Ann Sviph as Librarian whilst Peter
Humphreys was appointed to the new
post of Information Officer with special
responsibility for promaoting the work of the
Society and the archives. Useofthe Library
continued to increase with ‘customers’
drawn roughly halfl from the membership
and hall from stafl of the Institute and the
L0,

Library material relating to the current
scientiic meetings is displaved for a few
days before and after each meeting. Newly
acquired books are also displayed in the
reading room and are listed in the Library’s
acquisitions list which is compiled
monthly and circulated to staff. It is avail-

The Library Reading Room { photo: Doug McKenzie)

10

able to Fellows on payment of a smal| (. ik
to cover postage. A Library Endowme. ..
Fund has been established lormally | .i,i
Council. The Fund has a targetr of ¢
million to enable the Library to be fupg
from the interest received. The t_a;=|:,-::; o
currently stands at about £1240 ;1

§ th

Donations to this Fund would be me !_:1
gratefully received and will help to pre B
serve the unique collections in the Libran ih
lhe Library has a minimal budget for boot B
acquisitions and so relies heavily on rh

generosity of those who donate bocls qah
Donors this year include:- Dr E Barloy e |
Professor | L Cloudslev-Thompson, 1 Bk
| Edwards, Mr A Gommersall, [

Hemming, Mrs A Jepson, Mr B Jorgens
Dr 1 F Keyvmer, Mr A V Kivenko, Mr Koid i
Professor P A Racey, Mr A Seth-Smith, [ Bavi

| Slack, Mr H Swann. Miss A Waterfiel 1)
the estate of Mr P H Maxwell, Messe 14

Dorling-Kindersley and the Federation it
Zoological Gardens of Great Britain & B
Ireland. il
nl
| ¥
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gtors during the year: 949,655

iE COLLECTION
e Animal Management department
qtinued to be involved in the early part
the year with the reduction in the
qmber of animals kept. as part of the
s-cutting exercise and of the evaluation
species in the Collection, taking into
saderation those for which captive-
L oding programmes are an integral part
their conservation, in line with the
lision Statement.
rhe reduction in species did however
Jhle there to be an increase in enclosure
ko for a number of the remaining ani-
Js. Nearly all of the paddocks on the
won Terraces, and many of the aviaries,
e doubled in size, and this may have
a a factor in the Bird Department
ving one of its best breeding seasons in
ny years. the most notable hatching
ng from the endangered Manchurian
dcrowned crane. This was the hrst
weding of the species at London Zoo. Other
whle hatchings in the Bird Depart-
nt included Black-footed penguin,
lirkmenian Eagle owl, Inca tern. Superb
sy starling, Demoiselle crane. Roobook
Burrowing owl, Mikado pheasant.
Bar-tailed pheasant, White-
eked turaco, Livingstone's turaco.
Fimier hawk, Scarlet ibis, Fairy lorikeet

LM 5

ind Asian Pied :-;I.'Jr|i|'|g.
[he most notable and regretted mammal
artures were of the Bornean Orang

lans. The debate about which of the

eat Ape species should remain at the
was highlighted in the BBC2 series
e Ark’, and the solitary social structure
the Orangs, compared with the social
mpanzees, dictated that the Chim-
nzees should stay. The departure of
¢ Orangs has provided more space
" both the Chimpanzees and the
rillas.
lhe Asiatic lions 'Arfer’ and ‘Ruchi’
duced two litters of cubs, but the first
ter {of one cub) was premature, and the
cond litter was killed by the mother at
odays old,
Dilberta’, ‘Layang Layang' and "Mya’',
it Asiatic elephants, continued to walk
" the Zoo grounds, proving very popular
th visitors. The fourth elephant "Thi',
M is on breeding loan to Chester Zoo, is

-

Fioecting her first call in September

993, 'Dilberta’, at 13 years of age
‘don Zoo's oldest elephant, spent four
‘“tks at Chester Zoo in the spring, during
"ich time she mated with ‘Chang’, one
' the two bull elephants at Chester.
I!!’.-::-l'll.l]'l-ii[d.'h'. she did not conceive, but

the breeding programme will be continued
along similar lines.

The Clore Pavilion maintained its popu-
larity. The refurbished ."ki::|1|1|i1.1hl World,
where the endangered Rodriguez Fruit
bats in the bat cave produced four surviv-
ing young, being a particular feature. On
the Ground Floor, the female Saki monkey
gave birth to her fifteenth baby, and two
Prevost's squirrels were born. the first of
this species in the Clore. The Common
dormouse breeding project produced four
surviving young. The Koala was moved
to Lisbon Zoo. Portugal. and a pair of
Binturongs are now in the Round House
{formerly the Lubetkin Great Ape Breeding
Colony).

Other notable mammal births included
Chimpanzee. Lar gibbon, Red-faced Spider
monkey, Sulawesi Crested macague,
Diana monkey, Yellow mongoose, Ocelot,
Pudu, Giraffe and Arabian oryx.

The Children’s Zoo was fully opened
following its partial closure in the early

Seahorse in the Aquarium

part of the vear, with two new Hereford
calves in the cattle enclosure, and plans to
return pigs to the section. The ponies con-
tinued to give rides to children during the
summer months, and received a first-class
commendation in the London Harness
Horse Parade on Easter Monday.

The Aguarium was presented with
seven tons of coral which had been seized
by H M Customs and Excise. It is hoped
that most of this will be used in the new
Aquarium development plan, but. in the
meantime, a quantity of it was used to
create a dry exhibit with accompanying
text, to explain the problems caused by the
destruction of coral reefs.

A group of Seahorses was kept off-
exhibit for staff to investigate improved

AMNMMLI AL BEPFOHR'
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hushandry technigues, with a view to
eventual captive-breeding. Seahorses are
notoriously difficult to keep in captivity,
yet are increasingly under pressure in the
wild from the ornamental trade, and from
the pet trade.

The Reptile House obtained a pair of
Mile crocodiles from the Cotswald Wildlife
Park early in the vear, followed by another
female in the autumn. They are housed in
the lilrg{' crocodile pcrmi, and are the Hrst
gpecimens to be exhibited at the Zoo since
1978. A group of H[umlinl_['h Day geckos
was obtained and this Madagascan species
is new to the Collection. In the spring. the
old Beaver Pond in the Middle Gardens was
converted to a Reptiliary. A number of
lizard species were displayed during the
summer months, and were very popular
with visitors. Several exhibits in the Rep-
tile House itsell were renovated, including
those for Taipan and Fer-de-Lance snakes,
Shingleback Lizard and Prehensile-tailed
skink. Staff painted sympathetic back-
drops on to the walls of the enclosures. a
feature which was prominent when the
house was originally opened in 1927,

The Invertebrate department’s develop-
ment of a breeding programme, in associ-
ation with English Nature. for the
endangered British Field cricket culmi-
nated in the release of 700 Zoo-bred
crickets into selected sites in West Sussex.
Zoo Federation Meritorious Breeding
Awards were won for conservation work.
Staff also participated in an Institute of
Zoology research project at Leiden Univer-
sity, investigating genetic drilt in an
African butterfly.

Seven publications were produced,
including a set of symposia proceedings
on Arachnids. Papers were given at a
number of major conferences. including
the Sixth World Conference on Breeding
Endangered Species. A major technical
report was produced for the Government
of St Helena. and the Foreign Office. as
part of the department’s continuing
conservation efforts for the Island.

GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
The department continued to build good
relationships within itsdivisionsremoving
many of the old demarcations.
Purchasing and Transport division was
the recipient of two trucks on long term
loan from Kawasaki UK. A relief vehicle
was sent to Zagreb Zoo in Croatia, in col-
laboration with the GMEB Union. with
much-needed supplies of food. clothing and
animal foodstuffs, A second tripis planned.

11
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Lord Snowdon is seen looking at his personal Zoo scraphook,
Photographed within the Aviary which bears Iis name.

LG LN ) TR
t_} B Lord Snowdon visited the Zoo in January to promote “The
g.l.r H"f-II'”IIﬂ-"- af London oo’ |''HIII.I'r'1||'||.‘|'|II by the Royal Commissio
1 on the Historic Monuments of England. { photo: RCHME)

James Robson and John Stevens with ‘Lyang Lyang’ in the
elephant paddock

TR RN S I S S B L T | de

Rhinoceros iguana in the Reptiliary

Young White-faced Saki monkey
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Black-footed pernguin

il Pearce-Kelly with a Mexican Red-kneed bird-eating

per, one of the species being bred at London Zoo

Manchurian Red-crowned crane bred for the first
time at London Zoo

. ol |
A
s
i 5
.:

BT el . i
Pl Binturong: one of the recently acquired pair
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Projects involving Maintenance staff
included the siting of a marble elephant
donated by Liberty's, the Regent Street
store, in the centre of Barclay Fountain;
the upgrading of the small Penguin Pool:
refurbishing the Gorilla and Chimpanzee
exhibits, feeding stations in the Snowdon
Aviary, the new Golden Lion tamarin
exhibit in the Sobell Pavilions. new Nurs-
ing Mothers' Room in the Regent Café; and
refurbishment of the Staff Car Park. Many
of the projects were joint ventures with
keeper staff and other departments. The
Department was also responsible for over-
seeing the extensive clearing and levelling
of the lower paddock walls of the Mappin
Terraces. which was undertaken by the
University of London Officers’ Training
Corps, as their Exercise ‘Green Charity’.

areas. The old Squirrel enclosure was
replanted to create a woodland effect,
with rhododendrons, camelias. laurel and
bulbs, including crocus. daffodils, blue-
bells and snowdrops. Twenty years'
growth (40 cubic metres) of Polygonum
was cleared from the Tiger enclosure. This
was followed by trimming and removing
ivy from all the big cat enclosures and
Diving Birds Aviary.

An under-used area in the south-eastern
corner of the Zoo was cleared lor use as a site
for composting leafmould. Soil is also stored
there for in-fill in other areas within the Zoo.
The public were invited to bring their old
Christmas trees to the Yoo for re-cycling.
A wood chipper was loaned free of charge,
and was operated by Gardening staff. The
resulting pile of chippings will be used to

Staff of English Nature and The Society releasing Zoo bred field crickets at a West Sussex site

Plumbing and electrical staff were
involved in projects including the com-
plete electrical reflurbishment of the North
Bank Pheasantry and holding rooms, and
the staff shower system in the Elephant
House,

Additional work included re-opening
the North Bank, upgrading the Main
Gate. painting the Aquarium frontage,
and improving the exterior of all the
catering outlets.

The Sealion pool was re-landscaped
and the rock work cleared of unwanted
plants. The Zoo boundaries, which were
cleared in the 1991/92 season, were
planted with shrubs removed from other

4

help weed control in the shrubberies
around the grounds.

The Gardeners, in conjunction with the
Maintenance Department, transformed
the sunken bed in the Sobell Pavilions into
a water l_[:ir'd en, consisting of two ponds. @
stream. a waterfall and a small specimen
tree.

Retail

The Clock Tower housed a ‘Panda’ retail
outlet to capitalize on the presence of ‘Bao
Bao' and ‘Ming Ming'. The Discovery
shop was open on busy days, with a Peter
Rabbit theme dominating over the Easter

holidays. to coincide with the Frederd
Warne promotion, .

Stocks were reduced to artificially |y,
levels in the summer. in preparation fe
possible liguidation, resulting in |Jowe
spending levels at a crucial trading perigg
With staffing costs and other expendin,
kept to an absolute minimum, the regs
operation achieved budgeted net profis
for the vear, despite the shortfall in visitor
numbers.

New retail ‘concessions’ were intre
duced to complement existing facilities
and net contributions from these oper-

ations have made a useful addition ¢
trading activities.

A computerized stock-control systen
will be implemented in the next financ
vedr, to produce more timely and accurat
f'l!lillli]gl:‘l'l'll:"lll ill.l:lill'['llil.hli?[l.

A mail-order catalogue is being initiated
in conjunction with Ihr"-.!:lrL:'[iu;_.l_IJL'p;l."
ment, which should help to combat the
seasonality of the visitor dependent sh

Visitor Operations Department

A structured training programme for |
Firearms Team was successfully
pleted; 12 members were trained in the
use of firearms and in marksmanship, !
staff at the Police Firearms Training
School,

Westminster City Council granted auth-
orisation to operate the clinical inciner
tor, in accordance with the requirement:
of the Environmental Protection A
1990,

Action commenced in the latter hall
1992 to upgrade various facilities tocom-
ply with Health and Safety legislat
emanating from EC Directives.

Daily animal encounters, feeding ar
animal-handling sessions continued |
prove a major attraction. The Events Tean
concentrated on the high-profile *Anima
in Action’, and presented a total of 35
shows in the five months of the summs
season, todemonstrate the natural behav
iour of animals. Boa constrictors, Brow?
rats, Quaker parakeets and a Caracal v
were added to the presentation, (Xhif
activities involving the Events leal
included a fund-raising matinée &
Sadler's Wells, which featured a prese®
tation by the Zoo, Animal Encounis®
during the interval. followed by I"-
formance of Carnival of the Animak &
the French ‘Ballet du Rhin’. The =&
made a number of TV appearances “f:':
animals (The Really Wild Show, Para®

L.
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riy &, the faomous West End store, donated to the Society a marbie elephant, carved in India and
himg 44 tons. Peter Denton, Clerk to the Council, is seen with Neil Duffield at the formal

lover in iy

Kilroy) and took part in the Roval
ditution Lectures.
special events during the vear included

1 altempt on the world mass juggling

rd, a celebration of the Elephant in
mbo Weekend', kindly sponsored by
win Atlantic, and the now customary
nslmas promaotion.,

0 Hospitality
announced closure of the Zoo

versely affected Bangueting revenue,

eClally Christmas bookings and wedding
totions for 1993. The loss of the
iarium for functions due to Health and
#¥ requirements was very disappoint-
{0 a number of regular clients and
nmental to Christmas revenue as in
vious years the Aquarinm had rep-
ented 27% of total revenue. However,
* Was offset by a 58% increase in

‘Mueting revenue from January 1993

wards against the same months last

ir, due to a more pro-active procedure,

0 the Visitor Catering side, value for
ey was seen to be very important, and
S remained competitive.

lhere was a major re-organisation
ting, regrettably, in eight redundan-
S and the re-contracting of staff on
Uced hours. This was based on com-
“al logic linked to the need to reduce
“S not only in labour, but to improve

efficiency in all areas. Despite a difficult
trading vear, net profit increased by 11%
over the previous year.

Marketing

By Spring, visitor numbers were 18%
below budget due to bad weather, the
economic situation, and the lack of a

—
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coordinated marketing strategy. However,
the announcement in June that the Zoo was
to close resulted in an increase in visitors
which redressed the immediate shortfall,
Aborted advertising campaigns meant that
the Zoo had to rely on press coverage to
maintain its profile which enabled advertis-
ing costs to be kept to a minimum. The
threat of closure resulted in a fall in
autumn group sales figures.

Since the September announcement
that the Zoo would remain open, the re-
structured Marketing department has
worked to build the public’s confidence in
the Zo0 and develop a strong marketing
and communications strategy for the
Business Plan. A survey undertaken in
December 1992 revealed the effect of the
1991/92 uncertainties: 31% of people in
the catchment area saw the Zoo as closed,
closing, or did not know what the situ-
ation was. The department has been
working to redress this image. The launch
of the Zoo’s development plan gained
massive coverage and was the first step to
building a new image. Volunteers, Fellows.
Adopters and Lilewatch members were sent
a poster outlining the plans for the new Zoo,
'rIf'H_I ”'I{' ]'l.'HI:II:II:IHI;,' 'I."i'i-l"'ﬂ_'!l.i!'-{_'lllltl'lfk' j'E lﬁ!‘l]'.'i_"- .'lll.
new advertising agency. Harari Page, was
selected.

Despite the turbulent year. London Zoo
continued to gain the support of visitors and
members of the public with an increase in
Lifewatch membership and a high rate of
renewal. A mailing to lapsed members

Jackie Ossowski and Vanessa Long with "Sooty’ and "Sweep’, the Black Shetland ponies.
received a first class award in the annual Regent's Park Horse Harness Parade
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with details ol the developments gener-
ated over £5,000 worth of membership
revenue. A new Lifewatch T-shirt was
designed and produced by the fashion
store 'O the Cuffi’ who donated £1.000
from their sales. Panda Licorice also
donated £1,000 to Lifewatch after selling
i) of their watches. Both donations
were used to help fund Richard Kock's
conservation project in kenya (see page
20). In March 1993 it was decided to
operate separate membership schemes for
London Yoo and E‘n'i]i;!ﬂauulr_‘.

The Adopt an Animal scheme had a
ratherdifficult vear. Adopters were worried
that ‘their’ animal would not remain at
the Zoo and that they would be support-
ing a lost cause. A |'r1rg:: number of press
releases were circulated during the
autumn to generate Christmas adoptions
and received good coverage. Graham
Gooch was a celebrity adopter in
MNovember.

Joint promotions

One of the most significant promotions
was with Aries Design for a range of wild-
life greetings cards, which also feature a
voucher admitting one child free at twenty
UK zoos and wildlife attractions. The cards
will be on sale nationally during 1993, and
the Zoo will receive 10 pence per card. The
Christmas promotion was kindly supported
by Encyclopaedia Britannica, Panda Drinks
and Russ Berrie Trolls.

PRESS AND PUBLIC RELATIONS
This year London Zoo was rarely out of
the media spotlight. Despite the difficult

The Society continues to host visits from such
arganisations as the Variely Club, Spastics
Society and Rotary Clubs, Residents of the
Sheffield Cheshire Home are shown during
their visit with Andy Hallsworth and “Tyto'
the Barn owl
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summer with the fight to keep London Zoo
open, and with many internal politics made
public, good contacts continued to be made
within the media and excellent relations
weremaintained. Throughout the vear, the
Zoo received extensive TV. radio and
newspaper coverage, both nationally and
internationally. The French. American,
Dutch, German and Japanese press were
particularly interested in the Yoo's
situation.

On 17 June 1992, the President
announced that London Zoo was to close
in September, and the Zoo hit the head-
lines. Ten days later. the Kuwaiti Embassy
announced the very generous donation of
L 1 million from the Emir of Kuwait to help
keep the Zoo open. This led to national
press and television coverage and strong
interest in the Zoo’s hight for survival.
All the press conferences held by the Zoo
during the summer months were well
attended and the resulting publicity
raised awareness of the Zoo's important
conservation and education work,

In September, a packed press confer-
ence heard that, thanks to the generosity
ol the Emir, the work of the staff and the
welcome support of the public, London Zoo
wouldstay open. A further announcement
was made in October that the in-house
management plan had been adopted.

Molly Dineen's much heralded four
part documentary series ‘The Ark’ was
screened by BBC2 in January 1993, to
great acclaim. Many interviews were con-
ducted with Molly and the keepers who
became ‘stars’,

In February, the plans for London Zoo
were unveiled at a press conference.
Twenty-lour hours of extensive media
coverage was secured. The PR value of
this was calculated to be over £2 million
for the television exposure and over
£174.000 for the newspaper coverage.

TheZoohosted many photocalls for other
organisations throughout the year gain-
ng revenue and publicity. These included
Drinkwise, the British Safety Council,
WWF, NSPCC, Mercury Communications,
Spillers and Barclays Life.

The Zoo was also used as a location for
filming and photography, including ‘Sur-
prise Surprise’, ‘The Really Wild Show’
‘Open Space’, *The Late Show', *Horlzon',
‘Blue Peter' and ‘Nature Watch'. In
August, the BBC produced a programme
solely about the Zoo and its conservation
work as a "Nature Special’. Other good
publicity was achieved by appearances
made by staff on many television and radio

programmes, including “lim’ll Fiy Rk
‘Kilroy . ‘Parallel 9°, ‘Gloria Hunnifi
“Saturday Disney', and the ‘Ngipy
History Programme’. '
The Zoo continued to be supporieg

celebrities. Professor David Bellamy gq
great support to the campaign to keep =)
Zoo open. TV weatherman :".il-;_'l].:ll;l.i -
launched the new Life-watch T-shi 5
actress Lynda Bellingham  generoy B
gave her time (o back the Aries D e

card promotion. animal actor Peter Flli ol o

brought drama students from the Cem N
School of Drama into the Zoo regulad b
and gained publicity for the Zoo thro:Eas
many interviews about his work, anf
Catherine  Shipton  adop-4 (;
‘Kumba’ the Gorilla,

In January, Lexis PR, a public rela:
agency. wasappointed to provide expertis
i|.|:H.| e SRIslance o I:Jll;,' lll.[ilrkl_'lll'l‘l_: l.'_:'__"'.;:
ment's  communications  strategy

actiress

London Zoo.
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EDUCATION

London Zoo
The priorities this vear have been the

volunteer scheme, maintaining awan
ness among schools that the Yoo is s
open and the production of new graphic
In light of the Zoo's linancial difficulties ™
the department cut costs by almost SIS
and increased income through sales i
educational resource materials, evening
classes, hiring the lecture halls and the B
cation Season Ticket. The latter continue
to be very successiul and, [ollowing @
mailout to colleges in London, has bees
taken up by 167 students studying zoologi iy
art, dance and drama. For a fixed lee, therjgnd,
areentitled to unlimited access totheZoolofgn |
a year. In May, a second day for famites
and children with special needs was orgal

ised which was attended by over LU
people.

Learning opportunities for visitors
Throughout the year two self-guided tras
have been available from the Informal
Kiosk to children and their parents. (¢
an Eve-Spy trail, takes the form o ¢
treasure hunt and encourages families !
look more closely at animal shape, colo¥
and behaviour: the other is based on U
hand-felted wall hanging in the Chr
*avilion which depicts the Amazon ré
forest. A third guided tour has b
developed by volunteers.




jre

hool visits
b endances were somewhat erratic this
..:_, with a surge of visits during the
mer before the impending closure,
wed by a drop in the autumn. How-
Lo a newsletter later in the term. con-
qing that the Zoo was still open and
ng news of breeding successes, brought
1500 children for the Christmas
svities alone. Total attendances for the
bar were 42,100, representing a slight
reds.
vew materials developed include a
chaviour” pack for A-level students and
ases and Nocturnal Animals’ for pri-
v school children. 'Keeping Animals
Captivity” for secondary schools has

i

proved very popular with English classes
discussing topical issues. Westminster City
Council successfully sponsored school
visits for one vear by every child in its
CAre.

Special lectures were arranged. in con-
junction with Rentokil, for students
studving tourism and catering.

Adult evening classes

This yvear saw the start of the depart-
ment's evening class ‘Animal Ecology and
Conservation’ which was run in conjunc-
tion with Southwark College for ten weeks
in April and again the following January.
Over 35 people attended and, according to

iy Porter, a great supporter of the Zoo, and when Lord Mayor of Westminsier, visited the Zoo to
W OTEE educational H‘Ifgl_lr'-:ﬂl,l';ﬂ:“r.:: .:',Fr.-g“n-'_ﬁrlr' £ X0 |TH|'|I1” the samee time !LPI'HI:JF" ar Astalic
o She is shown with a group of schoolchildren standing in front of the Lion enclosure
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the questionnaire at the end, thoroughly
enjoved it and asked for further courses.

Graphics

Responsibility for new labelling on the
animal enclosures was taken on by the
Education department working in close
liaison with the keepers. Over 100 new
panels have been written to ensure that
every species in the gardens is labelled.
The original A4 portrait format has been
developed to provide landscape formats
for larger enclosures. A selected few well-
known characters, such as ‘Eros’ the
Snowy owl, have been accorded their
own label giving their lifestory. Special
graphics were written for voung children
in the Children's Zoo.

Volunteers

A great deal has been achieved this year
towards making improvements to the
scheme and in raising the standard of
volunteer participation and training. The
Volunteer Agreement was introducesd.
setting out clearly the level of commit-
ment required and the benefits to be
received. A new and more comprehen-
sive training programme has been put
into operation with nine full-day sessions
including the history of the Society,
captive breeding, customer care, prac-
tical skills and basic biology and classi-
fication. A recruitment campaign drew
many applications—so far 40 people have
been interviewed and accepted.

At Christmas, a team of volunteers
designed and decorated Santa’s Grotto
and helped with the ‘Living Nativity . In
the summer, the volunieers celebrated
their 10th anniversary with a party.



Visitors during the year: 409,719
Cars brought into the Park: 37.659

THE COLLECTION

The new regional organisation of the
collection proved a success. White rhino,
Roan antelope, Waterbuck and Sitatunga
integrated well in 'Africa’. The ‘Passage
through Asia’ now holdsover 1 S0animals
of six deer species, Nilgai and Blackbuck.
The Chinese Water deer also settled in
successfully.

One Brolga crane chick was reared for
the first time in Furope bringing to ten
the number of crane species bred at
Whipsnade. The first Nile lechwe to be
born in the United Kingdom was reared
successfully, but unfortunately the second
adult female died after the difficult birth ofa
stillborn infant. Every effort is now being
made to increase the herd but with so few
in European collections, this is proving
difficult.

The two female Bongo which arrived
from Regent'sPark in 1991 each gave birth
and both young were reared successfully.
The pair of Dwarf crocodiles on loan from
Copenhagen Zoo produced a clutch of
eleven eggs. Although seven were fertile
and developed fully, they did not hatch.
Efforts are continuing to hatch the first
Dwarf crocodile in the United Kingdom.

A very unusual event took place
towards the end of the vear with the
birth of twins to chimpanzee ‘Primrose’.
Unfortunately, neither survived the first
week,

Clive Bates. as deputy for the 'Asia’
region. spent six weeks in Saratov, Russia
helping with the incubation and rearing
of Great bustards. This was part of a five
vear programme signed in 1992 aimed
specifically at the conservation of this bird
through the exchange of ideas and exper-
tise. Seven eggs were laid but none was
fertile,

A male Yak was brought in from
Sweden to add new blood to the herd.

Whipsnade has joined London Zoo as
an approved breeding collection for the
Golden Lion tamarin, a male tamarin
from Denmark joining one of the females
after quarantine. Another female will be
sent to Holland as part of the international
programme, The return of the Black rhino
to Whipsnade is planned for 1993,

GENERAL

Attendances fell by 15% compared to
1991/92. This was attributable to very
bad weather during key days—22 days of
rain in August alone, the impact of the

London Yoo closure announcement and
the recession.
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However, despite the dramatic fall in
visitor attendance, the previous operating
losses of £959.000 (1990/91) and
LE61.000(1991,/92) have been reduced
to some L£70,000. This major achieve-
ment has only been possible through tight

cost control and the hard work of

“'hii'rﬁn'rtdr siall,

EVENTS

The Steam Weekend (May Bank Holiday)
was the best ever seen at Whipsnade with
many traction engines and Whipsnade's
own Steam Railway providing a focal
point for the attractions.

Successful company days were held in
the Park for Computer Associates, Lucas
Aerospace and Microsoft, and the British
Ambulance Preservation Society. The
Park also hosted Britannia Airways' Kids
Day Out on 5 July. BP renewed their adop-
tion of "Bumps’, the Bactrian camel, and
held a Staff Day in the Park to coincide
with ‘Bumps’ second birthday. Teddy
Bear 1992 was also well attended.

A cvele weekend was held in October, a
scouts day attracting more than 900
scouts and the annual WWF sponsored
walk with over 4,500 participants.

MARKETING
Bedfordshire County Council held its Tour-
ism Forum at 'l.‘l.'hi]:hrmn.ln: in Movember.,

a ] o

Meetings to promote Whipsnade wergl,
with the local Chamber of Compy.
coach operators and Rotary Clubs,

Familiarisation days have been 4
for coach operators, and the travel trad
with group business forming a EFOWin
percentage of the visitor mixture,

Christmas World  produced ahey
budget attendance figures, and 4
enhanced by a new winter schedy
which offered visitors three hours . -
indoor entertainment, -

BBC Radio Bedlordshire twice brog
cast its morning show from the Park =
the ‘Really Wild Show' was filmed
Whipsnade in August.

The Marketing department attenk
the British Travel Trade Fair in April ¢
Gloucester Day Out Fair, the Coach Exn
in September and Excursion 199
Wembley.

Promoetions were arranged with A
Clothes in Oxford Street. Choice Ma
mane, Avis Rentacar, Roval Mail Leis
Magazine, British Telecom, Harrods, ™y
Magazine, Thames and Chiltern Tours
Board, Evening Standard, Amway, Brils
Aerospace, Bedford Moat House
Chiltern Radio.

Current market research showed tha
B7% of visitors felt that Whipsnade
either good or very good value for mors
and 94'% would recommend a visit [
friend. The average stay in the Park =

L

11
i hi

Dwarf crocodile. One of a pair on loan from Copenhagen Zoo
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s | hours and 4 7% of visitors spend over
oy hours at Whipsnade.

WARDS

¢ Whipsnade advertisement ‘Out of
4 tho@edfordshire” won an IPA: a Silver Award
il r Advertising Effectiveness.

1991.

GRAPHICS

Eleven new graphic interpretative struc-
tures were completed and installed through-
out the Park. This centralised information
board system within each of the regions or
main paddock areas enables the Park to
display a story board approach allowing
visitors to see the animals in the context of

(et}
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{ Photo: ‘aerial” view by Panabode Ltd)
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their habitat, and includes more specific
information on the geographical location.

Education

I'he Field Studies Centre was completed—
including three dipping ponds—and has
proved popular.

School attendances continued to rise
during the vear, with 23.639 children
visiting the Park as part of an organised
visit. Margaret Williams, Senior Education
Officer, was invited to join the British Yoo
Federation's Education Committee. The
Outreach Scheme has proved very success-
ful, not only with schools. but also libraries,
fetes, hospitals and similar organisations.

A strong relationship has been formed
with Bedfordshire as an industrial link to
schools; this has meant that teachers may
be seconded to develop information packs
for use in schools and the Park, and are
also involved with planning various BTEC
courses. In addition. the department acts
asaschools’ link for the Dian Fossey Gorilla
Fund.

Help for teachers using the Park is given
in the form of teacher pre-visits. teacher
packs and training evenings.

The Education Officers are closely
involved in the graphics production
around the Park.

The Siberian tigers are seen in their large enclosure, Tiger Falls, opened by HRH Prince Edward —
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The Conservation and Consultancy
Division was established as an indepen-
dent section of the Society in May 1992,
It occupies its own quarters in the old
Development Trust offices in London Zoo.
[ts Director is David Jones, assisted by
Conservation Officer Alexandra Dixon.
The Division's |:urir|ri;'u|| project con-
tinues to be the King Khalid Wildlife
Research Centre at Thumamah in Saudi
Arabia. Now in the sixth vear of the con
tract to the National Commission for Wild-
life Conservation and Development, the
project emplovs 43 staff of widely differ-
ent nationalities (Filipino, 5Sri Lankan,
Sudanese and Egyptian as well as British)
to fill a range ol jobs from fence mainten-

ance to field ecology. Changes in senior staff

began in March 1992 with the departure

Protured shove, lefite right - Top row: The Cembral area; Peier CHdifield "-1'..||'H:. wilh Sherkh Hashir A0 Makbowammg an L |."'|':|'l-|l.'l by Carwill rghiting. Middle row: The BOFA Infarmatsos area and William 11 :

CONSERVATION AND CONSULTANCY DIVISION

of Mr Nick Lindsay (now Curator at
Whipsnade) and Dr Frank Rietkerk to be
replaced respectively by Mr  Charlie
Kichenside, a former overseer at London
Foo. and Dr Nigel Brown. Most recently Dr
Timothy Wacher has taken up a further
post of Field Ecologist, reflecting the
Society's expanding involvement in eco-
logical monitoring and survey projects in
The Kingdom.

Two re-introduction projects for gazelle
are well established and two more are
under development. In the National 1bex
Reserve at Howtah, 45 ldmi gazelles born
al the King Khalid Wildlile Research
Centre have been released into the wild
and have bred well. Close to 100 animals

can now be found in the reserve with the
gazelles calving twice a vear in many

cases, a testament to their general ool

health, Eleven gazelles have died o
appeared. of which seven were gy
an |.'-.|LI'.:||:|. |.‘II|.1:|I1'I3|._"F4'|.1 Arabian wirll
posed quite a dilemma for project staf
in the end the woll moved on, Fun
reintroductions are planned for W
Bordan and further South in the B

Al-Khali (The Empty Quarter) wher

Arabian oryx  are also  intended
release,

In Africa. Richard kock began his |
vear of secondment to the Kenya Wil
Service as their Chief Veterinarian. Jon
lunded by the Overseas Develop
Administration, Richard is charged »
immediate wildlite care as well as
investigation of disease and the trai
ol kenyan nationals to replace him

famious life size s ulpture of Guy at London Zoo, A lifesiee bronee s ulpluee of & lioa's head abso by William Timym was ihe cen irepisoe B the Bridish Ceroswp, courlesy of The Oxlosd PFastnershap, Botlie
BLFA wall graphics in the cenkral area. which alsa included 2 ph..f..w..pl;.-_ display of Middle Esstern snimals thal had been caved by e London fos

A Jeature of a recent exhibition at the World Trade Centre in Dubai was a display of the Society’s Conservation and Consultan y Division,
The centre piece was « lifesize bronze .‘\.l'ullllj'ﬂlr':' of a lion's head fl_jj’ Willicem Timm
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1992 1993
very grateful to Land Rover for their preliminary designs for a small zoo outside region, highlighting orvx and gazelles. An
b port of this project. Madinah were commissioned. Further adjacent stand displayed a large-scale
| ir Rob Brett's secondment continues at projects and consultancies are reported in illustrated review of all our zoo design
. request of the Kenya Wildlife Service Appendix 5. work in the Arabian peninsula over the
il April 1994. This extension of Rob's last 15 years, in particular the Doha
siract was generously made possible World Trade Exhibition in Dubai project and the master planning work for
ough the contributions of Mr Adam Many thousands of visitors to the World both Kuwait and Dubai.
| ih and an anonymaous donor. With the Trade Exhibition in Dubai in October saw
ol ."'“F'“I"""”“ of Black rhino in the wild a presentation of the Society’s work in the
v less than 2,000, the Kenya pro- Middle East in collaboration with the | 8
mme is vital to the future of the species Bonnington Architectural Practice, with
is probably the most stable of the whom the Society has worked on most of x,-f'f_
Hcan national programmes. the major 200 projects in that region x”f
rhe Division was appointed Technical This was a British-led exhibition on -’r|
ger to the Faith Foundation in design and architecture which had as its _
tember. Consultancies generated sig- centre piece one of the famous bronze I\ ({/] /
~ant income and several projects are lions’ heads by William Timym, a sculptor - 4 f,‘é'f
rently underway. Dr Barkley Hastings well-known to the Society, who died é?’l } éxﬁﬂ I
¢ spconded to the Al-Ain Zoo under recently, Surrounding the head was an
tract to the British Council. to deal exhibition of the Division's work in field Professor R. McNeill Alexander
h a feot-and-mouth outbreak. and research and conservation in the Gull SECRETARY
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Animal Welfare & Conservation Committee

Terms of Reference: To advise Council on matters relating to

Animal Welfare in the collections, at both London Zoo and

Whipsnade Wild Animal Park. at the Institute of Zoology and in

the work of the Conservation and Consultancy Division.

Professor DM Broom, BVMS, MBCYS

A | Higgins, BVetMed, MSc, PhiD. MRCVS

| F Keymer. Phi. FRCVS. FRCPath, FiBiol

Professor L. E Lanyon. BVSc. PhD. MRCVS

A Lindley

[} Macdonald. pehil

Georgina Mace, DPhil

W Plowright. CMG, DVSc. FRCVS. FRS

A ] Stevens, BVsCe, MRCVS, DipBact, Chalrrean

| R Swingland, PhD

Recretary: 1D M Jones. BSe, BVertMal, MRCVS, FIRiol (to 37,100,199 )
] K Kirkwood, BVSc. PhD. MECVS (from 1.11.1992)

Awards Committee

Terms of Reference: The Council presents awards for
contributions to zoology; The Stamford Raffles Award. The
Scientific Medal, The Thomas Henry Huxley Award, The Silver
Medal. The Zoological Society of London Marsh Award for
Conservation Biology. The Zoological Society of London Frink
Medal for British Zoologists and The Prince Philip Prize. The
Committee advises Council on all matters relating to these
awards.

Proflessor B McNeill Alexander, PhD. DSc. FIBIiol, FRS

Professor P P G Bateson, PhD, 5cD, FRS

Professor M P Hassell, nehil. DSe, FRS

Professor P Racey. BSc. FRSE. FlBiol

Professor K Simkiss, Phi, DSe, FIBiol

Mrs Margaret Varley. Phn

Professor | E Webb, nse. phn, Chairman

Professor L. Wolpert, CBE. DIC, PhD, FRS

Professor A | Zuckerman, Mn, DSc. DipBact. FRCPath

secretary: Marcia A Edwards, Php, FLS

Conservation & Consultancy Board

ferms of Reference: To formulate and keep under review the
conservation policy of the Society, and scrutinise, oversee and
approve the activities of the Conservation and Consultancy
Division in line with the Society’s Mission Statement and
Objectives.

% Cobb, pehil

Professor A S D Farmer Phib. CBiol, FIBiol, FLS, MIFM, ARPS
Professor T R Halliday nehil, Chairman

[} Macdonald, nehin

secretary: D M Jones. BSe, BVetMead, MRCVS, FlBiol

Education Committee

Terms of Reference: To advise Council on all matters relating to
the Societv's educational activities,

| Barrington-Johnson

a F Everiss, MBE. MSc, FIBiol

| Hattingh, Bsc

Professor A Lucas, BEd, Phi, FiBiol, Chairman

Mrs Jackie McMullan, Phn. MiBiol

S T Pollock, MSciHons

Mrs Susan Tunnicliffe, BSc. PGCE, CBial. MIBiol

2
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COMMITTEES AND BOARDS 1992-19953

APPEND

Mrs Karen Underwood
secretary: Miss Claire Robinson, BA. BEd

Publications Commitiee

Terms of Reference: To advise Council on matters concerning i
publication of zoological research: to serve as an editorial bog
for the Journal of Zoology; o make recommendations on
Library policy.

Professor R | Berry, PhiD, DS,
W N Bonner. Bsc. FiBiol, FILS
G A Boxshall. phi
Prolessor A ] E Cave, MI, DS, FROS, FLS
| P Croxall. rhn

Prodessor B G Gardiner, phi, DS

| Gurnell, phn

P Herring, Phi

Dr Marion Nixon, Phi

P 5 Rainbow, MA. Phid

R C Tinslev, rhn

Secretary: Marcia A Edwards. rhn, pi1s

FRSE, FlRiol, LS, Chairman

International Zoo Yearbook Editorial Board
ferms of Reference: To advise on the content and production of
the Yearbook

N L |-:|.|.';.".‘i'! i

Janet Kear, Phis

| Kevmer. PhD, FRCVS, FRCPath, F1Rio

I M Knowles, oni

Professor G Lucas, OBE. BSc FLS. FRCS

Georgina Mace, DPhil

| 1 C Mallinson, sigiol, Chairman

R ] Wheater. 0BE. CRiol. FIBiol, FRS

secretary: P | 5 Olney. BSc. DipEd. FIBiol, FIS

Institute of Zoology Committee

Terms of Reference: To advise the Society and the University of
London under the terms of the Agreement between them: to
consider, and make recommendations on all matters relating t
Lthe Institute of Zoology.

Prolessor B C Clarke, pihil. Frs

Professor B G Gardiner. PhD. Dse

Professor | S Jones, Phn

Professor L E Lanyon, Bvsc, Phi, MRCVS. Chairman

Professor G A Targett. phi, s

EX OFFICIO
Liniversity of Longdon

The Vice-Chancellor

The Principal

The Chairman of Convocation

Zoological Seciety of London
The President

The Treasurer

The Secretary

The Director of Science
secretary: EW Thompson, P




APPENDIX 1

jundon Zoo Board Whipsnade Wild Animal Park Board
- e af Reference: To advise Council on Terms of Reference: To advise Council on
natters relating to the operation of all matters relating to the operation of
don Zoo covering animal Whipsnade Wild Animal Park covering
nagement, visitor operations, animal management. visitor operations.
saration of draft budgets, operational preparation of draft budgets, operational
apt setting and monitoring, staffing, target setting and monitoring, staffing.
cketing. capital and development marketing, capital and development
s projects.
Fdwards, MA Professor T R Halliday, nehil
f==or M P Hassell, orhil, 05, FRS | M Enowles, osg, Churirman
fessor M Peaker, DSc. Phi, FLS. FRSI Professor A M Lucas, BSc. BEd. Phiv. FIBi
NEIFTRRCIE C ] S Marler
| Tudge. MA M S E Martin, FEIM. FIIM
retary: P H Denton, MBIM. Alnst TA I Webb, BSc (Econ). MBA

secretary: P H Denton, MBIM, Alnst TA




STAFF AND VOLUNTEERS

STAFF

THE Z0OLOGICAL SOCIETY OF LONDON

Director of Science: A P F Flint, PhD, DSc, Fikiol {until 26.2.93)

Deputy Director of Science: G R Smith, PhD, MRCVS. DVSM. DipBact

Assistant Director of Science ( Publications & General): Marcia A
Edwards, PhD. FLS

Library

Librarian: R A Fish, rrA (until 31.7.92) Miss E A Sylph. Bsc. M5c
AL Inlf 5S¢

Information Officer: Mr P Humphreyvs, BSc. M3e, PGC

Library Assistant: Miss K Ferguson, BA, DipEd. DipLib
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] Sub-species new to the Collection

LONDON 200
MAMMALS

Monotremaia
Tachyglossus aculeatus
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Marsupialia
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Insectivora
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Chiroptera
Pteropus rodricensis
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Terperiaa Lanc

Primates
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Australian Echidna
Bruijn’s Echidna

Grey Ground Cuscus
Leadbeater’s Possum
Sugar Glider

Byrne's Pouched Mouse
New South Wales Koala
Long-nosed Potoroo
Red-necked Wallakby

European Hedgehog
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Mungos mingo
Cypnictis perdcillentin
Felis carical

Felis pardalis

Panthera leo persica
Panthera tigris sumairoe
Panthera pardus saxicolor
Neofelis nebidlosa nebulosa

Pamnthera onca

Pinnipedia

Arctocephalus australis

Salophus californionus

Proboscice:
Elephas maxines

Perissodactyla
Equens brrchelli antiguortem®

[iceras Bicornis

Artindactvla

Letoneid glevemnas®
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Camelus bactrianns®
Prociu pradu®

Rangifer tararmdis
Okania fohnstoni
Criraffa camelopardalis®
Iragelaphiis strepsiceros®
Bubalus depressicormis®
Uiy betcoryx®

{nizella gazella arabica

Domestic

BIR DS
Sphenisciformes
Spheniscus dermersns

Spheniscus humbaldi

Pelecaniformes
Pelecarns omocrodelus
Pelecariug occidentalis
Maorts hassars

Plualacrocorax carho
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Asian Lion } 2 2 213
sumatran Tiger 3 2
FPersian Leopard J 5
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|aguar | |
South American Fui 2 1/
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Californian Sealion 4 t
Azian Elephant 3 | i {113
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Black Rhinoceros 2 |
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Pudu J I a
Reindeer 3 (/3
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Greater Kudu h 2 1 /3
Anoa | | | WE
Arabian Oryx f ; 2 2/5
Yrabian Gazxelle i i L
Cattle Friesian 2 2

Herelord 2 (/2
Coat: Common 3 (3

Mubian I il
Sheep: Dorset Down 3 (/3

Black Welsh Mountaln | 1t}

Jacob's 1 1,1
Kabhbit 4 fy iy M 13 1 2%
Cuineapig 11 i 2 4 14
Donkey 2 2 2 1,1
Pony: Cream 2 21

Shetland 3 03

Dartmoor I 1
Total Mammals: 73 TH1) B73 248 g5 sh1011 7O0
Blackfooted (Jackass) Penguin 36 1) 3 | 20 12/3/15
|[1|II!E:I|:-||.!:'-F'l_'|||L_'L|ir:| 2 1 /'l
Eastern White Pelican i | (03
Brown Pelican 4 2 =
Gannet } - 1002
Cormorant 5 . 4 (0
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miilormes

carax pipclicerax
g iz
cimeErdd
an abellrerii
difos errmenileris
kiornis aethiopicus
IFIRES FRRN'E
i |!,|I"

icopterns chilensis

srformes
CHigr Dicolor
roC IR Vil LT
win erboren
11 SEFRdviCErnss
ur bermicla orientalis
] k7
aellar bepcopierys
.'.'l Illll |I:|'-
IMIEr Ider et
sl rix
aibilertrixe = Agthener fuligula
S
ApPePESis
il :ll:"
safiraenss
ersicolor prna
Ll
[rells renlaiuila
TR
Irrel b @S tirosirs
rinfirn
a varlisinerin
d feree
i fraliaqrila
terta rodlissieng
furli o hrrnrnali
i albells
5 Ferpanser

"o MEFTERCETRSES |ill'rr|-C|'I-C NS

mnilormes

§ IPHGreLiIs aneigrenris
15 [FirM .I.'e'.l.'l'-!fl"\-

[} 'I::_'.'|"H. (4 |“|':|Il-ll!ll"":
aroides fHps

Crax Sermiorguaiies

dormies
UP PLIrpLrascens
s Toleala
afirus pordicerianis
LT R T T
fan tmminekii
POTLS iR
it e wiared i
iptilan crossi pilom
s weadifehei
Wtices huereioe
Waticyes muikado
ETISlales
PV Congensis

i valturingm

Might Heron
Cattle Epret

Larey Heron
Abdim's Stork
Marabou Stork
Sacred [bis
scarlet This
Alrican Spoonbill
Chilean Flamingo

Fulvous Whistling Duck
White-faced Tree Duck
Cuban Tree Duck
Hawalian Goose

Brent Goose

Carolina Duck

Ringed Teal

Wigeon

American Wigeon
Chiloe Wipeon

Chifoe Wigeon = Tulted Duick
Gachwrall

I'eal

Cape Teal

Pintail

Bahama Pintail

Punia Teal

Hottemior Teal
Garganey

shoveler

Marbled Teal
Fed-crested Pochard
Canvashack

European Pochard
Tulted Duck

Fider Duck

Goldeneve

SMew

Ceoasander

Morth American Ruddy Duck

Black Kite
Lappet-laced Yulture
Bateleur Eagle
Harrier Hawk

African Pyemy Falcon

Crested Guan
Bare-laced Curassow
Indian Grey Francolin
satyr Tragopan
Temminck's Tragopan
Impeyan Pheazant
Edward's Pheasant
White Eared Pheasani
Cheer Pheasant
Hume's Bar-tailed Pheasant
Mikado Pheasant
Common Peafowl
Congo Pealowl
Vulturine Guineafow]
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Gruiformes

Caraes ilpnhindiisis
Ceries Vigho
Anthropoides virgo

Charadriiformes

Haematopus osiralegns
Recurvirosirg avoselid

Burhirus oedicnemies

MNIFRERTIS argiati

] Firtg® [oranes

Philomachus prgnax

Larrues cirrocephalus peiocephalis
Latrostera [nea

Liria enelege

Columbiformes
Pterovles alchata
Columba guinea

Duculia bicalor

Psittaciformes

Charmeosyna pulchella rothschildi
Cercatterer lba

Cercatug fenuirostiris pastfnator
Mestor notabilis

Paolytelis alexandrae
Poicephalus robustus
Anodorhynchus hyacinthinus
Ara chloroptera

Enicognathis ferrigines
Enicogmathus leptorhymehus

| |_|.J.'|l[l'-.|r.'|| ricrachiis

AP0 O RPN ] el

Cuculiformes

Tauraco persa livingstonii
Tauraco erythrolophis
Tauraco hartlawbi

Tauraco lencotis

Strigiformes

Thto albg

CHus bakbarmoer

CHus lenucoliis

Butho bibo (erconeamnus
Bubo capensis mackinder
Bubo vosseler
Pulsatrix perspicillata
1'-:'.'-: (T .'|-:'-!|'r||:r||||'£i'
Mirox noveseelandiae
Athene brama
Speoteto crunicularia
Strix hylopila

SErix uratensis

SErix nebiilosa

Coraciiformaes

[hicelo movaeguineae

Coracias caudata

Tockus erythrorhymchus
Penelopides panini

Anthracoceros ¢ PFOFRIIRLS COrve X s
Bycanistes subcylindrics

16

Bed-crowned Crane
White-naped Crane
Demoizelle Crane

(hestercatcher

Avocet

Stone Curlew
Curlew
Redshank
Rl

Grev-headed Gull
Inca Tern
Guillemaot (Murre)

Pintailed Sandgrouse
Speckled Plgeon

Pied Imperial Pigeon

Fairy Lorkeet
White-crested Cockatoo
Western Slender-billed Cockatoo
kea

Princess of Wales FParrakeet
Cape Parrot

Hyacinth Macaw
Green-winged Macaw
Austral Conure
Slender-billed Conure
Duaker {Monk )Parrakeet
Yellow-crowned Amason

Livingstone s Turaco
Red-erested Turaco
Hartlaub's Turaco
White-cheeked Turaco

Harm Chyl

Collared Scops Owls
White-laced Scops Owls
Turkmenian Eagle COwl
Kenvan Eagle (Onwl
Mduk Eagle Owl
Spectaclied (wl

snowy Chwl

Hesnbonk Ol

Spotted Chwlet
Burrowing Chwl

Rusty Barred Owl

Ural Onwl

Creat Girey Ul

Kookaburra
Lilac-breasted Roller
Red-billed Hormbill
Tarictic Hornbill
southern Pied Hornbill

Black and White Casqued Hornbill
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15 Iearnis Great Indian Hornbill l i1
ras hydrocorax Rufous Hornbill 2 1/1
nmnes
pogon prrologphius Fire-tufted Barbet 2 | 1/0
ot derbiees Bearded Barbet 2 _ ] 1/1
plossIes drRcE Black-necked Aracari X 1/1
plassies castanolis Chesinut-eared Aracari I i1
niirs betillori Saffron Toucanet 2 1/1
serpes candidus White Woodpecker I = (/1
seriformes
. it rrisdicollis Maked-throated Bellbird 1 FL1)
AOLLS [OCOSLES Bed-whiskered Bulbul 2 1/1
il Fairy Bluebird 2 1/1
liex levieolopdas White-crested Laughing Thrush 2 1/1
litx pectoralis Mecklaced Laughing Thrush I 0A01
lirx chimemsis Black-throated Laughing Thrush 2 1/1
ilinx: sanrio White-browed Laughing Thrush & 1 0041
- firix argeriaris Silver-eared Mesia 2 1/1
thrix luted Pekin Robin (Red-billed Leiothrix) | 0/0/1
FOIS S White-eye . (/0 2
i COTEELA Red-crested Cardinal 2 1/1
imopsar chopi Chopi Grackle l - 1/}
il et icertada Precki Heck’s Grass Finch z - 1/1
e frichroa Blue-faced Parrot Finch | 1/
il gueelea Red-beaked Weaver (Quelea) Z 1/1
dig flavicans Rodriguez Fody 4 I 22
rdOT RS Tris Emerald Glossy Starling 2 /1
superius Superbk Glossy Starling 2 9 £ 1/1/3
plhera cinerea Wattled Starling #d 1/1
IS FOSELS Rose-coloured Starling 2 1/1
s cork re Astan Pied Starling 2 i 17111
] s vrlgaris Comimon Starling | |
ipsar rothschildi Rothschild's Mynah 3 I 2/
liceps coromat s Golden-crested Mynah 2 /0y 2
telar religiosa intermedia Nepal Hill Mynah 2 /1
orax chrysops Plush-crested Jay 2 1 0/1
W COFAX COFY Raven 2 2
meslic
Common Duck 2 2 | 0/3
Old English Game Bantam | |
Domestic Chicken 3 0/5
Total: Birds 579 b5 204 85 87 57 393
PTILES
dudines
wtherus odoratus Stinkpot 1 L/
uterron subribrum Eastern Mud Terrapin 1 0/0/1
sternon scorpiofdes Scorpion Mud Terrapin 2 - 1/
wiemnys scripta dorbignig South American Ornate Terrapin | /1
wiemys scripta eleqans Red-cared Terrapin &) 1/3/2
anene caroling tricguis Three-toed Box Terrapin 2 -- LY
wlo qroeca Spur-thighed Tortolse 2 i - = 2/3
Mochersus torniert Pancake Tortolse | 1/0
chelone carbomaria Red-footed Tortoise 1 : o 10
mochelys imbricata Hawksbill Turtle 3 = = Oyl)=
lus fimbriatus Matamata 3 = - 0/1/4
“ding longicollis Long-necked Terrapin 3 - 2/3
nyx e Peacock Soft-shelled Turtle 2 = - = 1/l
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Crocodylia
Crocedylus nilotics

il 1 .
Yligator sinensis

Sauria
Teratoscineus scinchs
Hemithecomyx caudicinetiis
Chondrodactijlus amgulifer
Gekko I ki
Phelsumua lineata pusilla
Pl sporrig staraelingi
Coleongyx variegatus
Erlrlepliaris miaeiilarius
Laemanctus lowgipes deborrei
Basiliscus plumifrons
Chpedura corrtila
Amphiibolurus vitlticeps
Uromastyx hardwicki
Egerriia striokata
Coructa zebrata
Trachydosaurus rigosis
Tiligiae scincoides scincofdes
|'-.'.|.'|,I.'|'-:|' seircaides intermedia
Muabuipa quinguetasniaia
Erreces schieiderii
Chalcides ocellatis
Lerrhosaurus enefor
Lacerta leplidn
Frogonopiiis wiegrnanai
Vararus exanthematicus
exantirernticns
Vararnus niloticus
Heloderma suspectum suspectum
Heloderma suspectum cinctum
Anguis fragilis

Cordylus gigarntens

Serpentes

Liasiz b

Vorelin spilotus spilotis

Pythom reticulatus

Python molurus bivitiatus

Frytieon sebae

Prytion regins

Boa constrictor

Natriv natrix

Tharrmmophis sirtalis

Drymarchon corais couperi

Elaphe quttata

Elaphe obsoleta quadrivittata

Elaphe radinta

Fitwophis catenifer

Frivophis relanolencis
melanolencus

Hydrodynastes giqas

Heterodon mrsicas

Lorenella ausiriara

Lampropeltis getulus foridar

Lampropeltis getulus californiae

I'.JJ-'-‘i'_I'H 'JJ-I'-'-'l'- cr.u.'rl::ru.'.'rrrl sirnerloere

Paammophis subtaenial s

Dispholidus typus

Cixgjuranus scutellatis

Motechis scutat s

Naja pallida

3

Nile Crocaodile
Chinese Alligator

Frog-eved Sand Gecko
Alrican Fat-tailed Gecko
Mamib Sand Gecko

Tokay Gecko

Lined Day Gecko

standing’'s Day Gecko
Western Banded Gecko
Leopard Ground Gecko
Casque-headed Lizard
Plumed Basilisk

Rhinoceros lpuana

Inland Bearded Dragon
General Hardwick s Dabb Lizard
Australian Tree Skink
Prehensile-tailed Skink
Shingleback

Eastern Blue-tongued Skink
Morthern Blue-tongued Skink
Five-lined Skink

Schneider’s Skink

Eved Skink

Greater Plated Lizard

Eved Lizard

Wiegmann s Burrowing Lizard
Bose's Monltor

Mile Maonitor

RBeticulated Gila Monster
Banded Gila Monster
=SlOW-Worm

SUMEazer

Bismark Ringed Python
Diamond Pvihon
Reticulated Pyihon
Burmese Rock Python
African Rock Python
Roval Python

Hoa Constrictor

Larass Snake

Common Garter Snake
Eastern Indigo Snake
Corn Snake

Yellow Rat Snake
Badiated Bat Snake
Bull Snake

Morthern Fine Snake

Boipevassu Snake
Western Hog-nosed Snake
=mooth Snake

Florida King Snake
Californian King Snaks
sinaloan Milk Snake
Feter’s Long-lined Snake
Boomslang

Taipan

Tiger Snake

Red Spitting Cobra
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e kerontheice
e fuelviees
[P NS EFTEEE LIS
ril ."l'-' aik
ryt arnmed ytes ammodiyies
rar ruissedli siarnensis
% @rlElEns
¢ gabonica gabonica
¢ CAFTIRTLLES X0 hureki
£ carinei s ocellatus
g earinaius feakeyi
strordion piscivores
selasiid Fhiodostomia
MEFES LIS LIRRF FRE LT |'|'II|:I'rIl.'-
TR LA
Nrops IR0 T
s crde i eex Le '_||'|'.'.‘II'III4'-

§ | . ]
s durisses calminat s

irlus alrox

iopl r gadad

NS SCRT ML IS

fnlns viridis oreqanis
tlus meffchelli

11 Cerasies

dEHIBIA NS

udaia

1] 7L I-I||'F|.| I |.|,I|.|.:|'||||
HELOIPND I ECE T

bystoernr tigrieeeem

aroelefes waltl
Il v salarandra
LINT EERF sl

r)es Cristal s

Lries vidgaris

i
ANEriton Sp.

ILFg
mbir orienialis
mbirnr v rleqata

0 rbrroprnciates
W FRAFIFES

I wirfdis

wtethis frinitatus
ndrilrfes qurains
rdvales Erumcatos
I cirerea

i sephentriomalis
Mssina senegialensis
Wia coerila

Wi [nfrafremaio
eveosniries sp.
[l
niella pulchara

W crbeshelorn

1 2 3 5 [} 7

Monocellate Cobra 2 | 1 /()
Eastern Coral Snake 1 |
Commaon Green Mamba ) 1/1
Adder ] /1
Western Long-nosed Viper ] 2/1
Russell’s Viper 2 I 1 /()
Puff Adder 2 1/1
Gaboon Viper I | 1/1
Saw-scaled Viper g [ | /3/E
West Alrican Saw-scaled Viper 2 1 /041
East Alrican Saw-scaled Viper 3 1/2
Cottonmouth Moccasin I 0/0/1
Malavan Pit Viper 4 1/2/k
Mangrowe Pit '|,i||.-;| 2 | (/0,1
Fer-de-Lance ] i
Moojen's Fer-de-Lance I 001
Western Massasauga 2 | 1/
Morth Western Meotropical

Raitlesnake 2 141
Western Diamond-back Ratilesnake 2 2
Mojave Rattlesnake Fi i/1
sorthern Paciic Rattlesnake 1 i
Speckled Rattlesnake l 1/
sidewinder | i1
l'otal: Reptiles 211 i 18 232 35 232
American Spotted Salamander (¥ 5 0071
Axolol 15 5 (/08
Tiger Salamander 2 2
Spanish Ribbed Newt 5 30 27 (s
Fire Salamander I 7 (/0710
Rough-skinned Newt 2 0/0/2
Crested MNewt I
smooth Newt 4 (/0/4
Dog-faced MNewt 11 WA N
Oriental Fire-bellied Toad 2 20 2 (/020
Yellow-bellied Toad | |
Red-spotted Toad 10} } LR T
Cane Toad § i
Green Toad | 4 2 00 3
Stream Frog i 20 0/0/45
Paison Arcow Frog i 7
Poison Arrow Frog 7 i /01
American Green Tree Frog I " /01
Cuban Tree Frog | I
Running Frog i 3 0/0/2
White's Tree Frog i i
Giant Tree Frog | I
Dwarf Surinam Toad IOk b /07
Surinam Toad - 4 2 0/0/2
Mantella = 110 — e 0/0/10
American Bullfrog 5 - 2 0/0/3
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e Timinoe Pz
Bairug pipiens
R ridibuenda
Bitrug Levmporarin
Nenopus laevis

Nenopes tropicalis

IN\VERTERRATA

beginning of 1993,
CIIARIA

Scyphozoa

Aerrelior aterrina
ANMNELIDA

Hirudines

Hireredo medicinalis
MOLLUSCA

Gastropoda
Ereqlernadinma rosea
Yo tnartirner e Pertionen
Vehating fuilica
Vrehachating marginata
Vil X -C'Ill-l'i';!.'ln.llllnl"-
Parrtule arguta
Partule dentifera
Perrtuiler fraba
Perreraila hebe
Partela mooreana
Parreeler rosea
Partee swteeralis
Partula taeninty
Partula tohiveana
Partula turgida
Partula vearia
AR THROPODA
ARACHNIDA

Araneae

“epiila madecascarionsiz
'I.l .il :-'Ilu'l FMNE RN .'|'|I.'| F Il
Euathlus emilia

Euathis smithii
FErnthies vagmmns
Lasiodora parahybana
Porcilotheria formosa

Lartrodeciies macians

Scorpiones

Amilrovtonus crassicada
Berthuis oecitanus
Heteromel riis finifer

Pardines imperator

1 2 3 4 e b F
Rice Paddy Frop § ;
Leopard Frog I LU
Marsh Frog | & (WTNNE -
Common Frog 2 WTLHTR |
Clawed Frog 5 i 2 WY d
Clawed Frop 2 3 } (405
P
lotal: Amphibians 174 =il i) bt } & 161 ilid
il
]
Details of the invertebrate collection have not been included in previous Annual Reports. (n this occasion the numbers given represent animals held at the |
"
Moon Jellvlish 12
Medicinal Leech 20
pi
5L
Frisdatory snall ih
Liant Land Snail J T
Gilant Land Snall 1
West Alrican Giant Land Snail i I
Banana Slug : |
Polynesian Tree Snail | Fr
FPolynesian Tree Snail 54
Polynesian Tree Snail 2000
Polynestan Tree Snail s B
Polynesian Tree Snail 31 :
Polynezian Tree Snail 1)
Polynesian Tree Snail 512 !
*olynesian Tree Snail 8
Polynesian Tree Snail 259 ;
Polynesian Tree Snail 116 |
Polynesian Tree Snail |86 al
1
|
Iy
|
Iropical Crb Spider 1B ;
Pink-toed Bird-eating Spider } ;
Red-legged Bird-cating Spider I |
Red-kneed Bird-cating Spider 250} i
g - -
Ked-rumped Bird-cating Spider I I
Brazilian Bird-cating Spider 2 '
Urmamental Tiger Splde 2 .'
North American Black Widow Spider | ™
Ll
1]
. : .
Fat-tailed Scorpion 2 | :
Yellow Scorpion 4 =
Asian Jungle Scorpion 2 ™
Imperial Seorpi :
I | Scorpion | 8 =

200




[

IISTACEA

capoda

s hrfro Raobiber Crab |
nobita clypeatus Land Hermit Crab 3
PLOPODA
ligda
shidastrem s sp. Giant Millipede ]
rohsolida
s prlchripes Mombassan Train Millipede i
SECTA
itodea
mphadorhing portentoso Malagasy Hissing Cockroach i)
alaneta americard American Cockroach 1CHDC)
planeta australasiee Australian Cockroach | W)
e
usavarabns olymphie (Mimpia's Ground Beetle &
frnouli 5p Chaler Beetle A0l
ella qralli Jade Headed Buffalo Beetle a1l
rabeous semripeine tales African Dung Beetle B
TS 5[ [esert Beetle _"
plera
! |"I.I'.':-""| lernengersi e I ruit Fly NN
emiplera
fipmerns guttala \ssassin bug 410
ymenoplera
s mredliflera Honeybee o=
pulex compressa Jewel Wasp 200
i cephalotes Leaf-cutting Ant Cx4
mica rufn Fed Wood Ani C=1
Note: C=one colony
pidogteras
mbyx for Silkworm 10]
lrariis melpaemene Postman Butterfly al)
urnidac mixed specics 100)
Lantodheas
wdraeririlis sp Alrican Praving Mantis 5
nhoplera
LSt Fdgralorie Migratory Locust 20000
WSEOCEr e gregarii Lesert Locust S0
illies Brirrienc ool s African Field Cricket LCICH)
wliis caompestris British Field Cricket 250
ueogriyilis geertsi Cave Cricket 200
mideing crassidens Wellington Tree Weta 4}
TS WerFaIvOr LS British Wart-biter Cricket SCHLE
itralla quadrara Sri Lankan Bush Cricket 11
hasmatoptera
rphylla wuelfingi Dueensland Titan Stick Insect B[}
irgcantha sp Indonesian Spiny Stick Insect 40)
Ciatogorme Ligralum Macleav's Spectre Stick Insect M)
teropreryx dilatata Malavsian Jungle Nymph 30
Wrmacha acanthopus Glant Asian Stick Insect 20
illirm sp. Leal Insect i
e —

il Invertebrata: approx. 64 species: 10146 specimens: 7 colonies

e

w

By

]
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WHIPSNADE WILD ANIMAL PARK

MAMMAILS

Marsupialia
Macropus rufegrisens freticad

Frimates
Virrecia varieqetins vriegulns

SO SCHFELLs

Leomtopithecus rosalia rosalin

Parn troglodyies

Rodentia

.:_'_|_||-.|.-||_||-;-. {rdoviclamus
[olichotis patagonum
Chinchilla laniger

Carnivora

Cerrtis lupnis

Lrsns qrctos

Ailueraes fulgens

NS T PR LT

Suricata surfeaiin
Helogale parvula
‘arthera leo

Panthera tigriz altaica

Acinonyx jubatus

Pinnipedia
Zitlophus californianus
Fhoca viteling

Halichoerus arypis

Proboscidea

Elephas maximus

Perissodaciyla

Eipuizes baerchelli antiguorum®
Fiquinis grevyl®

Equus hermionus®

Equites prezewnlskii®
Rhinoceros unicornis

Cerntolherium simum

Artiodacivia
Hippopotamus amplibius
Choe rogrsis liberlensis
Lerrna glavma®
Lama gquaricoe®
Cermielus bactrianes
Cetrnelus dromedaris
Viwntiacus reevesi
D dama

Lxis axis®
Axis porcimis®
Cervies duvauceli®
Lerviis ""f.|’.|"'5"-'.
Cervies elagies
Elaphures doavidigns®
Hangifer taramdus
Hedropoles inermis
Uirafla camelopardalis®
Ciirafia camelopardalis reticalata®
Tragelaphus amgasi®
lragelaphus spekef®
ll-fllﬂl'.lll']"llll-l.'l *C.'r'l'rlr.lr.:'rnl:-.'
Tragelapiius ewryeeros®
Hoselaphus tragocamelus®
Bos gaurus®

Bos grurnniens
Syneertis caffer®

42

Red-necked Wallaby™*

Ruffed Lemmur
Squirrel Monkey

i Black-capped form)
Golden Lion Tamarin
Chimpanzes

Prairie Marmmot**
Mara®™®
Chinchilla

Grey Waoll
Brown Bear

Fed Panda
Ring-tailed Coati
‘eerkat

Dwarl Mongoose
Lion

siberian Tiger
Cheetah

Californian Sealion
Common Seal
Greyv Seal

Asian Elephant

Common Zebra (Chapman’s form

Grovy's Zebra

Asiatic Wild Ass (Persian form)

Preewalskl's Horse
Indian Bhinoceros
White Ehinoceros

Hippopotamus
Fygmy Hippopotamus
[lama

GLanaco

Bactrianm Camel
Arabian Camel
Reeves's Muntjac®®
Fallow Deer

Axis Deer

Hop Deer

Barasingha

Sika Deer (Formosan form)
Red Deer

Piére David 's Deer
Feindeer

Chinese Water Deer™®
Giraifie

Giraffe (Reticulated)
Myala

sitatunga

Greater Kudu

Bongo

Milzai

Cxanir

Yak

African Buffalo (Dwarf Forest form)
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| on Bison 'fum*rir:u: Bizon :! | 1 | : L |
i1 BOrRESES European Bison i .I 2 i
| s Pl eeinns” Koan Antelope | B d I- )
,'."|i:.l:-l'.lII.||'I' Sable Antelope I_ | 1 7
s ellipsipramnus® Common Waterbuck ; : | . %
1% MIEICETrs Mile Lechwe s . : | s
: ||'-I.'|'.I.I|-" aermshok (i : _:l ; e
¢ darrmah® Scimitar-horned Oryx L b L i i 0 , ()
r lencorix” Arabian Oryx 1 I I_I ,
satizees dorcs Rontehak ¥ == - : : I--'I |
e cervicapra® Blackbuck I4 r 3 ] : s
'::.:J: TRILTL L Thomson's Gaeelle 3 ] | J I _,
1% penschol s Ausk O i | | : _I
¢ SUSIFFIOT Aoutlon | ‘ o
canslensis Bighorn Sheep o 2 ]
mesiic ] | ‘10
Shire Horse L I
Cream Pony I |
Welsh Pony (Cream lorm l 1/0)
Caddleback = Oxford Saddleback Pig I I,I 01
Oxford Sandy & Black Pig 1 (/1
Belted Galloway Catile | l I,I
Red Poll Cattle 3 ':' .>-
Manx Loghtan Sheep . ;i
Lincoln Longwoo Sheep I /1
Wenslevdale Sheep 2 1 {31
Hampshire Sheep 13 3 3 |_ .\-.:Iu
Windsor White Goait 15 I.2 L] I £l ]
lotal: Mammals 1853 191 160 47 E 01 19573
f
RIS
|
wuariiformes e
IMIrIREsS COEsSEMEri s Australian Cassowary 2 3 . 12 4s
| Fomaius novee ol landiae Emu 3 ¥
henisciformes . 1 | e
| Plenodpytes patagonicd King Penguin | . - i
Iiptes crestatus Rockhopper Penguin 1 | : : S
| heriscns hrureholdi] Humbaoldt's Penguin G5 I". ] 2 11 A
|
coniilormes : , ] L e
i ciconin White Stork E“ 3 ' i
| locimus rube Scarlet [his ‘l 2 -; Il Shle
wnicopteris reber ruber Rosy Flamingo 33 :
| ‘meeriformes ] o
IS L rad s Black Swin 2 . | aa
s meeleenog --I'.'|JJiII|.'. Black-necked Swan 1 Hap
| Hanus Capeprnis Whooper »wan > i
seoroba coscoroba Coscoraba Swan 2
BEF dresen Greylag Goose | e ony
| nser imndicas Bar-headed Goose 44 z 21171 g
ST CAndgicus Emperor Goose I'_ ks
irda fercopsis Barnacle Goose o ] I-- |
| et hernicla orientalis Brent Goose | i
ranta ruffcollis Red-breasted Goose i 1/1/6
pochen aeqeplidcts Eeyplian Goose H chmps
! forea cana South African Shelduck ; <
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Tirderma tadorma

Al sponisn

\nas penelope

Anas sibilatrix
Arars sirepern
Amars crecoa

Amas speceilarioides
Arurs acnta

Amas clypeata
Netta rufirna
\ythya fuligula
Arythya marila
Sonueteria mollissina

Cheyeera wiltala

Falconitormes
Halineetus lencocephalus
Crpfprs @fricanus

stips rueppellii
Parabuteo unicinctus
Aguila rapax
Falco iarmicus
Falco cherriug

Falco peregrinus

Galliformes

Frovecolirs erckelii
.';-,--r'|¢~r--r'|.-.-4.-_~. [P pELIrLS
Crnilas apalluis
L'.'nl'-..'.-:'||.'r.'|'-'r| CFO% '\-.u'l|.lr.'.||'r|
Chryzolophies plctus

Pavo cristak s

Gruiformies

(iraes monacha

(Friis japarnensis

(iraes vipio

Grus antigone

Crus rubicunda
Brgerarms carunculalus
Arethropeides virgo
Anthropoides paradisea
Balearica requlorum
Cariarma cristata

CItis tarda tarda

Charadriiformes
Heaematopus pstraleqes

Berhines bistriatus

Psittaciformes
Pseudeos (uscata
Cacal qalertta tritomn
Alisterus st 'ﬂ?ll"'ll.lp'.' is
Platycercus eximius cecilae
Ara macao

Ara chloroptera
':.'.Iﬂ-'rI-::'i'J.'u'IJ.\ [tAgORErE
Migiopsitta momachis
Ara grardacna
Psittacela eupatria

Strigiformes
Tyto alba
es lewcotis

Bubo bubo bemgalensis

14

Shelduck

Carolina Duck
Wigeon

Chiloe Wigeon
Oadwall

Teal

Crested Duck

Pintail

Shoveler
Red-crested Pochard
Tufted Duck

Lreater Scaup

Eider Duck
Argentine Ruddy Duck

Bald Eagle

Aflrican White-backed Vulture

Ruppell's Griffon Vulture
Harris" Hawk

Fawny Eagle

Lanner Falcon

Saker Falcon

Feregrine Falcon

Erckel 5 Francolin
Impeyvan Pheasant
Red Jungle Fowl™
White Eared Pheasant
Golden Pheasant
Common Pealowl™*

Hooded Crane
Red-crowned Crane
White-naped Crane
Sarus Crang

Brolga

Watiled Crane
Demoiselle Crane
stanley Crane
south African Crowned Crane
Red-legped Seriema
Great Bustard

Llystercatcher
Double-striped Thick-knee

Dusky Lory

Triton Cockatoo

King Parro
Golden-mantled Rosella
Scarlet Macaw
Green-winged Macaw
Fatagonian Conure
Ouaker Parrakeet
Blue/Gold Macaw
Alexandrine Parrakeet

Barn (hwl
White-faced Scops Owl
Bengal Eagle Owl
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et scandiaca anowy Ul z 1/1
gl seplvertica Tawny Owl 2 1/1
mcliformes
el v AL e Laughing Kookaburra I 001
IOTTIES
it vitellinus citreolnemus Citron-throated Toucan 2 {1/2
=erilarmes
TS IMEYIra s Mexican Rose Finch b 33
mestic

Hirmingham Raller Pigeon 24 24
Fotal: Birds LT 23 48 11 B3 48 5317

FIPFTILES

|

[ studines
tdir gpravec Spur-thighed Tortoise 13 13

| studo hermeanni Hermann's Tortoise Y | 27

b tuide Eleinpearer klcinman s Tortolse Z 2 22

| cochelome denticulata Yellow-looted Tortoise ; 1.2
codvlin
el RS fetraspis West Alrican Dwarf Crocodile 2 171
iria
I prnlgaRs o rimnsrs arandis Liant Dav Gecko 4 |
weplutris muctlarivs Leopard Ground Gecko 12 2 I I 10 1/3
[ plumifrons Flumad Basilisk i 5 {7
i ke Common lguana f | : 3/1

v scliedderii schnelder’s Skink 2 1 0000
LS SCiPnCEes Sand Fish 3 ] /02
ST aegatics Egvptian Dabb Lizard 3 0/0/3
s corolimernsis Carolina Anolis Lizard s 002
[I¥ Smpred Anolis Lizard | (0
fivia 5p Ameiva F. | AR
WS exantfrerreticts Bosc s Monltor + (04
NS
o molurnes bivitats Burmese Python 11 2 5 1 f273
Icanstriclor Hoa Constrictor I | =
ilhies carinuis Emeriald Tree Boa 2 2
lhies eriplris cook Cook's Tree Boa 2 3 2 F 1/2
rales cenchrio Rainbow Boa 2 2
merophis sirtalis Garter Snake } i
nesles cermstes Horned Cerastes Viper 4 1/3
18 carinalus sochurek Saw-scaled Viper 1} | (30

Total: Reptiles 110 3 b ] 23 30 67
UPHIBIANS
iy
0 s Cane Toad 1 001
tophrys cornuta Horned Toad 2 (/02
strobates auratus Black/Green Polson Arrow Fros 4 20 L) 00/ 15
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2 4 3 (5 i
Phujlobates sp. Poison Arrow Tree Frog /2
Hepla sepdentriomalis Cuban Tree Frog |
Rivtcophorus dermysi Giant Asian Tree Frog j /1)
Ceralogiires arnali Wide-mouthed Frog l 00
Total: Amphibians 21 _— 13 — 22
SUMMARY
London Zoo
M LAET i i|
I\"|'|'-_ 's
excludir
lomes
1 2 i } 5 (s i
Mammals 7 34 rrd Y| By LE M5 a3 1] 7] I
Birds T 55 204 3 BT 5 54 ] 3
H!'I'l:ill:"‘-, 211 &1 | & | ] 1 11 ;
Amphibians 174 sl 14 ] ] i 1
Todal 1698 2531) 1125 314 IR2 BRI 1778 313
Estimated number of fishes and invertebrates in the Collection at 31 December 1992
Fishes Approx 1, 700 2012 species
Invertebrates (excluding some commaon species) Approx 10,146 hd species
{+ 7 colonies)
Whipsnade Wild Animal Park
Mammals 1853 191} | B I 4R =00 1 1973 h3
Birds by 23 48 | 1 i3 1S 53 i3
Reptiles 1 100 5 L I 1% ) o a
Amphibians 14 ] 1 1 y £
Toxn 2584 BE(1) 214 59 197 128(1) 2599 153
Estimated number of fishes and invertebrates in the Collection at 31 December 1992
Fishes .1L|:'l|‘:-|'|:-:l. L] 14 "‘F""- o=
Invertebrates (excluding some common species) Approx 1200 12 species
Grand Total
Zoological Society
of London 4282 121 1319 303 479 %10 43177 440

I'he species common to London Zoo and Whipsnade Wild Animal Park are counted as one




OLLABORATIVE RESEARCH, ADVISORY AND

'ONSULTANT SERVICES

AC Institute of Animal Physiology and Genetics Research, Roslin:

mdemiology of tropical theileriosis in Morocco.

Re & MRC Newropathogenesis Unit,  Edinburgh: Studies of

pongiform encephalopathy in zoo ungulates: Spongiform

| meephalopathies of exotic bovids.

wan Natural Heritage Trust: Technical advice, particularly on

| Jganda. Kenya and Zimbabwe.

o L Alistair Reid Snake Venom Research Unit. WHO Collaborative
; Centre for the Control of Antivenoms, i'-r'L'rr'Irrrhi':' School of Tropical

Wedicire: Advice on housing and management ol venomous

nakes.
mal Diseases Research Association. Moredun Research Institute:
Collaborative study on Toxoplasmosis in wallabies: Toxoplas-

o

mosis of captive wild animals: diseases of red deer.
ad Transfusion Service: Malaria diagnosis.
ish Airways Assisting Nature Conservation: Collaboration on

e

| conservation of Great Bustard.
igh Council: Secondment of emergency veterinary staff to
nited Arab Emirates.

atral Science Laboratory. Surrey: Mass mortalities of the common
| g,
|--:mI Veterinary Laboratory, Surrey: Spongiform encephalop-
athies of exotic bovids, puffinosis in Manx shearwaters, mass

mortalities of the common frog.

taburi Hospital, Thailand: Infectious disease diagnosis in blood
anks.

mical Research Centre, Middlesex: Collaborative research on the
svolutionary biology of alanine glyoxylate aminotransferase.

-Handasah, Eguypt: Preliminary designs for Madinah Zoo.

saudi Arabia.

lish Nature: Management of site of special scientific interest
s881) at Whipsnade; (Training branch) advice on handling of
renomous snakes.

ioptan  Wildlife Conservation Organization: Signature ol
Memorandum of Understanding and assist with conservation in
thiopia.

[ Customs: Housing and advice on identification of reptiles.
spital for Tropical Diseases: Malaria research.

SERM. Paris: Collaborative studies on the molecular biology of
wrmone receptors with Prol Paul Kelly.

titute of Animal Physiology and Genetics, Babraham, Cambridge:
Lollaborative studies on boar spermatozoa.

titute of Terrestriol I;'|'|r|'|:l_ri||f. Boanchory: Collaborative research on
the genetics of domesticated camelid breeds: parasites of
suropean otters | Lutra lutra).

titute of Virology &5 Environmental Microbiology. Oxford: Puffinosis
n Manx shearwaters.

n Radcliffe Hospital, Oxford (Nuffield Department of Clinical
Vedicine );: Advice on housing and management of venomous
nakes,

Nt Nature Conservation Committee: Health assessment of red Kites
or reintroduction.

s College (KQC), London (Department of Anatomy and
Human Biology): Collaborative project investigating neuro-
endocrine aspects of reproductive suppression in naked mole-
ats. (Department of Hmi‘uﬁi.:'.:ef Sciences): Welfare of captive
Marrots.

tdon School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine: Diagnostic methods.
acaulay Land Use Research Institute. Aberdeen: Collaborative
studies into the reproductive biology and control of puberty in
*ottish red deer.
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Macawlay Land Use Research [Institute, Shotts; Collaborative
research on the genetics of domesticated camelid breeds.

Madagascar Fauna Group: Advice on veterinary aspects of lemurs in

Madapascar.

MAFF: Studies ol reproductive technology in deer.

MAFF Central Veterinary Laboratory, Weybridge: Studies of spongi-
form encephalopathy in zoo ungulates and of virus diseases of
zo0 and wild animals.

MAFF Fisheries Laboratory. Burnham-on-Crouch/Sea  Manmmnal
Research Unit, Cambridge: Collaborative studies on organo-
chlorine and heavy metal levels in cetaceans, seals, and
ollers.

MAFF Veterinary Investigation Unit, Polwhele/5AS Veterinary
College. Inverness/Veterinary Department, Liverpool University
Sea Mammal Research Unit. Cambridge: Collaborative study ol
parasites of scals around the British [sles.

Marwell Zoological Park Hants and Thrighy Hall Wildlife Centre,
Norfolk: Research projects on captive breeding and Al

Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries: Collaborative studies on
the development of reproductive technologies in alternative
agricultural species.

Moshi Hospital, Tanzania: Malaria research.

MRC Unit of Experimental Embryelogy and Teratology, S5t George's
Hospital Medical School, Tooting: Collaborative studies on mouse
sperm freezing and embryo transier.

National Avian Research Centre, United Arab Emirates; Collaborative
studies of Bustard management & nutrition: collaborative
project on molecular |‘.|]1_'..'lugt"t1jl|' of Bustards.

National Institute of Health, Islamabad. Pakistan: Surveillance of
human and canine leishmaniasis.

Natural History Museum, London: Parasites of captive and free-
living wild animals: collaborative studies on the life history
and parasitology of cetaceans; Parasitic infections of wild
animals.

Nature Conservation Bureau Lid, Newberry: Management and
velerinary care of Bustards: collaborative project on molecular
phylogeny of Bustards,

Open University: Collaborative studies on Pealowl.

Queen Mary and Westfield College. London: Dynamics of long bone
growth.

Oueens University, Belfast: Collaboration on trout population
genetics.

Reading University ( Department of Microbiology ): Studies of spongi-
form encephalopathy in zoo ungulates.

Royal Free Hospital, Lomdon: Toxocara diagnosis: Comparative
anatomy of the appendix. inflammatory bowel disease of
primates.

H.::IH’“I ,|||.;1,|T1||,l|-'|-r_“ il Hr:fi::l.lﬂ MNew LIII'”E'F?I'.' :'||.1.|:|r|'ilt!'rf|.' of the common
dormouse: diseases of the European hedgehog.

Royal Society for the Protection of Birds: Health assessment of red
kites for reintroduction, advice on avian diseases.

Royal Veterinary College. London: Collaborative studies on the
sexual development of marsupials.

RSPCA Wildlife Hospital, Norfolk/SAC Veterinary Investigation
Centre, Inverness/ MAFF Veterinary Investigation Unit, Polwhele/
BREMA Laboratory, Simferopol, Crimea, Ukraine/Dyfed Wildlife
Trust/University of Cork (Zoology Department )/ University of
Liverpool { Department of Pathology ): Collaborative studies on the
pathology of cetaceans and seals.

St Mary’s Hospital: Retrovirus infections of primates: Retroviral
infection of wild animals: papillomatosis of captive wild animals.
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Saratov Regional Authority, Russia: Joint programme for conser-
vation of Great Bustard.

Sea Mammal Research Unit, Cambridge: Collaborative studies on
gene flow in geographically structured seal populations/on the
life history of the harbour porpoise.

Sense ard Vision Electronic Systems Lid. Sheffield: Collaborative
development of computerised sperm mobility assessment sys-
tem JSR Heathbred Ltd. Thorpe Willoughby, Yorks. Studies on
hl i3r H[:ll'.'rr:I'LEETl: ¥EOE,

Shanks & McEwan ( Southern) Lid: Collaborative botulism research.

State Institute for Public Health and Environment, Bilthoven/State
University of Utrecht/Veterinary Research Laboratories, Stormont:
Collaborative studies on virus diseases in cetaceans and seals.

Statens Bakteriologiska Laboratorium, Stockholm, Sweden: Serologi-
cal diagnosis in Somalia.

Tshabalale Wildlife Sanctuary. Department of National Parks and
Wildlife Management, Zimbabwe: Joint funding in Rhino Rescue.

Thrighy Hall Wildlife Centre, Norfolk: Research projects on captive
breeding and Al.

University of Aberdeen: Collaborative research on Lyme borreliosis
in Red Deer; (Department of Zoology): Collaborative study on
population genetics of Pipistrellus pipistrellus.

University of Birmingham: Collaborative research on the evolution-
ary physiology of Tamm-Horsefall protein.

University of Bradford { Department of Biomedical Sciences): Collabor-
ative studies on the endocrine control of hair growth in seasonal
mammals.

University of Bristol { Depariment of Zoology ): Collaborative research
on population genetics of Pipistrellus pipistrellus.

University of Cambridge ( Zoology Department ): Collaborative study
on the role of parasites in the population dvnamics of Soay sheep
on 5t Kilda: collaborative study on Patagonian Cavy.

University of Cape Town (Department of Zoology): Collaborative
studies on the reproductive physiology and molecular genetics
of African Mole-rats.

University College., London: Collaborative studies on Chemical
Pathology and reproductive biology.

University of East London: Protozoal infections of reptiles and
invertebrates.

University of Oxford { Department of Zoology ): Collaborative study on
mortality in harbour porpoise populations: Puffinosis in Manx
shearwaters.

University of Southampton (Department of Biology): Collaborative
study on the parasitological examination of formalin-fixed
cetacean tissues.

University of Stockholm, Sweden: Collaborative study on trout
penetics. '

University of Virginia, Charlottesville, USA { Department of Biology ):
Collaborative studies on biological clocks.

WHO Centre for Echinococcosis/Hydatidoses: Collaborative project
on the prefalence of Echinococcus granulosus in Uruguay.

Zimbabwe Department of National Parks and Wild Life Management:
Joint funding of mechanic Paul Oleszczuk, Rhino Rescue.

Representation on Scientific Societies, Zoological, Conservation

and Research Organisations

Anirtal Welfare: Dr M A Edwards { Advisory Editor)

Anthropoid Ape Advisory Panel: Dr | K Kirkwood (Member Scientific
Committee).

Bitliography of Reproduction: Dr H Shaw: Dr A Loudon (Board of
Management).
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British Andrology Society: Dr W V Holt iHonorary Secretary),

British Veterinary Zoological Society: Dr | K Kirkwood (Member of
Council): Mr A A Cunningham (Council Member).

British Wildlife Rehabilitation Council: Dr | K Kirkwood (Treasurer ||

Department of the Environment: Dr | K Kirkwood { Part 1 of Secretary
ol State s List of Inspectors under the Zoo Licensing Act); A M
Dixon (Member of Bio-Diversity Advisory Group)

Euraopean Cetacean Soctefy: Mr T Kuiken (Member. Pathology
Working Group). |
Foundation for Research, Science and Technology. New Zealand: Dr A

Loudon (Member of the International Advisory Panel)

Government of Brunei (Batang Duri Zoo): Douglas Richardson
{ Adviser on Yoo Management).

Institute of Fisheries Manmagement: Dr H Hall (Member).

G Game & Wildlife Department: N B D Lindsay ( Adviser to 7og
Committee).

International Endocrine  Services: Monitoring. with  European
#2008, endocrine cycles of exotic species, particularly captiva
elephants.

International Soctety of Andrology: Dr W V Holt ( Committee on the
International Status of Andrology).

Irnternational Union for Conservation of Nature and Natural Resources
(Species Survival Commission): Mr A A Cunningham ( Member,
Captive Breeding Specialist, Invertebrate Group:; Member,
Pathology Working Group, Declining Amphibian Populations
Task Force): Dr E | Flach iMember): Dr | K Kirkwood ( Member,
Veterinary Group): N B D Lindsav i Reintroduction of Insectivore
Specialist Group).

joint Management of Species Group Committee: Gerald  Asher
iMember, UK Bovid TAG)E John Buchan (Member, UK Felid
TAG): Mick Carman (Member, UK Primate TAG: EEP Primate
TAGY Sarah Christie ( Corresponding member, UK Primate TAG
UK Felid TAG: UK Bovid TAG: EEP Felid TAG: EEP Marsupial TAG;
EEP Bovid TAG: EEP Primate TAG): Linda Davolls (Member. UK
Primate TAG): Malcolm Fitzpatrick (Member, UK Small Carn
vore TAG): Jo Gipps (Member, JMSC. UK Primate TAG: EEP
Primate TAG): Paul Harrington (Member UK Touraco TACGE
John Pullen (Member, UK Primate TAG): Douglas Richardso
{Member, UK Felid TAG: EEP Felid TAG; EEP Hornbill TAG): Dave
Risley (UK Reptile TAG): Fred Smith iMember. Penguin TAG)
Mike Tiley iMember, UK Parrot TAG); Frank Wheeler (Member
UK Small Carnivore TAG),

foint RSPCA/UFAW/FRAME/BVA Workshops on Refinement: A W
Sainsbury (Member, Housing Rabbits Group).

fournal of Clinical |I.rr|||'-:'."44relrll_r Anmalysis: Dr A Voller { Editorial
Board ),

Jovrnal of Clinical Pathology: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board).

Journal of Comparative Pathology: Dr G R Smith (Chief Editor).

Journal of Endocrinology: Dr A Loudon (Editorial Board).

Journal of General Microbiology: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board)

Journal of General Virology: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board).

Journal of Immunoassay: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board).

Journal af Immunological Methods: Dr A Voller ( Editorial Board).

fournal of Medical Microbiology: Dr G R Smith (Editorial Board).

Journal of Virelogical Methods: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board).

Linnean Society of London: Dr M A Edwards (Editorial and
Programme Committees).

Medicina: Dr A Voller ( Editorial Board).

Natiomal Avian Research Center, United Arab Emirates: Dr | B
Kirkwood (Scientific Panel).
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anal Federation of Zoological Gardens of Great Britain & Ireland:

v B D Lindsay (Conservation and Animal Management

pmmittee).

anal Marine Mammal Research Steering Group: Mr T Kuiken
Vember),

mate Society of Great Britain: A W Sainsbury { Member Council:
aptive Care Working Party).

gramme for Appropriate Technology in Health { PATH): Dr A Voller
echnical Advisory Group).

Ielena Group: Paul Pearce Kelly (Chair).

tish Strandings Linison Group: Mr T Kuiken ( Member).

mtran Tiger PHVA and Captive Breeding Workshop, Indonesia:
wirah Christie: Douglas Richardson

enmedizin wmd Parasitologie: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board).
ersities Federation for Animal Welfare: Dr M A Edwards (Council
wember).

ersity of Bristol: Dr | K Kirkwood (Visiting Lecturer, Depart-

nents of Medicine and Animal Husbandry).

wrsity of Glasgow: Mr A A Cunningham (Visiting Lecturer,
epartment of Veterinary Pathology ).

wrsity of Kent: Dr | K Kirkwood (Visiting Lecturer, Durrell
pstitute of Conservation and Ecology).

wersity of London: Dr R Abayasekara, Dr B Brinkow, Dr C
aulkes. Dr W V Holt. )r H Jabbour., Dr A Moore and Dr G
Vebley (Course Lecturers and Honorary Research Fellows,
epartment of Biology., University College. Londen) Dr B
rinkow: Dr C Faulkes: Dr H Jabbour (Course Lecturer in an
nter-Collegiate course on Reproductive Biology, King's College.

ALFPEMNEDLA 3

London}); Mr A A Cunningham (Visiting Lecturer, Department
of Pathology, Roval Veterinary College): Dr F Gulland (Visiting
Lecturer, Royal Veterinary College); Dr W V Holt (Course
Lecturer, Roval Veterinary College, London): Dr | K Kirkwood
{Board of Studies, Roval Veterinary College); Dr A Loudon
Honorary Research Prolessor,
Department of Biology, University College, London): Dr G R
Smith (Visiting Lecturer, Department of Pathology. Royal
Veterinary College): Dr A Voller (Reader in Immunology of
Parasitic Diseases, London School of Hygiene and Tropical
Medicine).
University of Nottingham: Dr A Loudon (Visiting Lecturer, Sutton

{(Course Co-ordinator and

Bonnington).

Vaccine: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board).

Veterinary Invertebrate Seciety: Mr A A Cunningham (Secretary).

Veterinary Research Club: Dr G R Smith (President)

Wildlife Disease European Section: Mr T
(Secretary).

World Association
(Secrelary).

World Health Organisation: Dr A Voller (Member, Expert Advisory
Panel on Parasitology: Member, WHO/IUIS Sub-committee on
Standardization of Reagents lor Enzyme Immunoassays).

World Society for the Protection of Animals: A W Sainsbury
iMember, Scientitic Advisory Panel).

Zebra Foundation for Veterinary Zoological Education: Dr | Kirkwood
i Director and Trustee).

{ssociation. Kuiken

of Wildlife Veterinarians: A W Sainsbury
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The following amended Regulations. effective from 1 January
1993, were made by Council pursuant to the power granted in
Article 8 of the Charter:

ENTRANCE FEES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS

7 L£10 out of the annual subscription of £50 shall be remitted in
the case of Ordinary Fellows resident within the British Isles
but outside a radius of 30 miles from Charing Cross,

8 £20 out of the annual subscription of £70) shall be remitted in
the case of a Scientific Fellow who does not wizsh to receive the
fourmal of Loology.

9 L5 out of the annual subscription of £40 shall be remitted in
the case of Associates resident within the British Isles but oui-
zside a radius of 30 miles from Charing Cross, save for those
Associates who qualily for student remission under Regulation
B (vi) for whom £15 shall be remitted.

12 Overseas List
(i) An Ordinary Fellow who is resident outside the British Isles
at the time of his election shall be registered on the Overseas

List. in which case £25 out of the annual subscription of

£50 shall be remitted.

(ii) An Ordinary Fellow who takes up residence outside the
British Isles alter election or intends at any time to reside
outside the British Isles for a period of more than twelve
maonths shall be transferred to the Overseas List. Du ring his
residence abroad, £25 out of the annual subscription of £30)
shall be remitted, except in respect of the year in which he
leaves the British Isles.

(i) A scientific Fellow who is resident outside the British Isles at
the time of his election shall be registered on the Overseas
List. If he does not wish to receive the Journal of Zoology. £4 5
out of the annual subscription of £70 shall be remitted.

{ivi A Scientific Fellow who takes up residence outside the
British Isles after election or intends at any time to reside
outside the British Isles for a period of more than twelve
months shall be transferred to the Overseas List. If he does
not wish to receive the Jourmal of Loology during his resi-
dence abroad, £45 out of the annual subscription of £70

AMENDMENTS TO THE REGULATIONS

APPENDIY

shall be remitted, except in respect of the year in which j
leaves the British Isles.

(v) An Associate who is resident outside the British Isles ap b4
time of his election shall be registered on the Overseas [
in which case £15 out of the annual subscription of £4]
shall be remitted.

ivi) An Associate who takes up residence outside the Britsh
Isles after election or intends at any time to reside outside |
Rritish Isles for a period of more than twelve months shall
transferred to the Overseas List, During his residence abrog
£15 out of the annual subscription of £40 shall be remitied
except in respect ol the yvear in which he leaves the Brin.

[sles.

13 Life Fellows
The lollowing life composition fees shall be payable by any Fell
who wishes to compound his future subscriptions:
Agegroup 18-29 30-39 4049 50-59 60 vears an:
[ELY
£1205 L1100 £965 L300 £410
provided that any Fellow who has reached the age of sixty-five:
has at least twenty-five years membership may compound |
future subscriptions by making a single pavment of £60 subject
he is a Scientific Fellow. to relinquishing the privilege of receivi
the Jowrnal of Zoology without charge.

Any Fellow on the Overseas List may compound his [uture s
scriptions by a single payment bearing the same proportion to |
full composition fee for his age group as his annual subscripti
bears to the full annual subscription. provided that the balanc
the full composition fee for his age group shall be pavable if a

when he becomes resident in the British [sles.

Life Associates
The following life composition fees shall be payable by a
Associate who wishes to compound his future subscriptions
Age group 18-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60 yearsa
OV

L1000 £915

L8015

L=
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REASURER’S REPORT

' hall. The process begun by my predecessor is continuing to re-establish and maintain the financial viability of the
Society without receipt of revenue grants from the Government.

the Despite swingeing cuts in operating costs in the winter of 1991/92, the forecast visitor numbers for 1992/93 al
. both Zoos proved to be optimistic and as a consequence the closure of London Zoo seemed inevitable. Ironically the
'yl decision to close London Zoo generated a surge in visitors so that a forecast loss of approximately £3500,000 was
turned around into a surplus of £156,000. Our plight also led to the Emir of Kuwait's most generous gift of L1
A million.

ihal. I am relieved to report that the Society as a whole broke even in 1992/93; a small surplus of £32.000 as
Ibell compared with a deficit last year of just under £2m.

oad The 1992/93 Accounts show that whilst we were able to maintain total income at the previous vear's level of
't 14,716,000, expenditure was reduced by £2 million to £14.684,000. In the Balance Sheet, the provision made
last year for the costs of closure of London Zoo has been reversed; considerably strengthening our Funds. which
stood at £10,148,000. £5,462.000 of our Funds had been spent on new exhibits and other fixed assets over a
number of years, and £977,000 had been invested in a portfolio of shares mainly held by the Scientilic Fund.
Working capital amounted to £3.709,000.

The total number of visitors to both Zoos was down by 12% over the corresponding financial yvear. Expressed on a
calendar vear basis, 16% lewer visitors came to both Zoos in 1992 (a decrease at London of 16%, a decrease at
Whipsnade of 17%) as compared with 1991. Our Lifewatch Membership and Animal Adoption Scheme, whilst
experiencing a set back at London Zoo, grew substantially at Whipsnade Park.

| would particularly like to acknowledge the response by our staff who have played such a full part in finding the
essential cuts in costs. At this difficult time for the Society, it has been particularly welcome that our Volunteers
have given so much time and effort alongside our full-time staff. The Society also wishes to express its thanks to all
those who contributed to the Society by way of grants for purchasing fixed assets. numerous research funding
grants and individual legacies and donations.

As the Society moves from survival to revival much vet needs to be done. Attendance figures in the first quarter of
this financial vear at London and Whipsnade are lower than budget and measures have been taken to reduce
expenditure again. Many uncertainties remain, not least the recession and how to attract more visitors.

INCOME ANALYSIS 92/93 EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS 92/93

Whipsnade Park

|
Whipsnade Park o
22% 23%
London Zoo LstdinZon
53% Institute 530
of Zoology Institute
17% of Zoology
- : ] 74
Conservation 20%
& Consultancy 1%
Learned Society ';“HSEWET’“"
I 404 & Consultancy 1%
nvestment Learned Society
Income 4% g
1}
3%
Total £14.72 million Total £14.68 million

PETER. WRAMNGHAM
Treasunet




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Revenue Account
for the vear ended 3 1st March 1993

Income
Expenditure

Operating deficit for the year

[ncome [rom investments
Interest receivable

Surplus/({ Deficit) for the vear

Exceptional items
Grants for purchasing fixed assets:
Emir of Kuwait
(Other

( Deficit)/surplus on sale of assets
Restructuring credit/icharge)

Extraordinary item
Curtailment credit/(charge)

Excess of income over expenditure
(expenditure over income)

Appropriations from/{to) specific funds
(T )/ from Dev elopment Fund
From/(to) Z5L Development Trust
From/(to) Other Designated Funds
(To)/from Endowment Fund

General Fund balance brought forward

General Fund balance carried forward

The notes on pages 33 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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[y

| &
17
1 8
19

Year ended

}1st March 1993
£000s

14,231

14 .hEd

157
298

485

15

Year ended
115t March 1992
L (Mg
14.0087
16618
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FINAMNCILAL
STATEMENTS
'nsolidated Balance Sheet
sat 31st March 1993
1ed Mote 1993 1992
92 L'000s £ 000s £ 000s
i1y aed assels
9 rangible assets 4 3,402 2487
| K nvestments 103 Qr7 1,003
21} .4 39 3.490
Y irrenil Assels
h3 8 Stocks 11 421 54h
Debtors 12 824 924
79 (ash at bank and in hand 4,468 2.2494
5.713 j.7 b4
reditors: amounts [alling due
within one year 1 3 (2.004) (2,596)
¢l current assels 3.70%9 1.165
wal assets less current liabilities 10,148 4 A58
reditors: amounts falling due after
more than one vear | 4 (12)
100,148 4.646
[ 4 = — —
41 funds 15
evelopment 16 4,790 1,092
#SL Development Trust 17 478 701
; Other Designated |8 1.071 1. 100
Endowment R 3.313 1132
I General 496 615
10,148 4.646
pproved by Council on 7th July, 1993
& PETER WRANGHAM
—_ Treasurer
SIR JOHN CHAPPLE
President
he notes on pages 55 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
|
|
53
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 3 1st March 1993

Net cash inflow )/ (outflow) from operating activities

Returns on invesiment and servicing
of finance
Interest received
[nvestment income
Interest element of finance leases
Bank interest paid

Nel cash inflow from returns on
investments and servicing of finance

|:||1.'4.'r-;|ing activiies
Purchase of fived assets
Disposal of fixed assets
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
et cash outflow from investing activities

Met cash inflow {outflow) before financing

Financing

Capital element of finance leases
Net cash inflow /(outflow) from financing

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

MNote
o
I‘.I‘
275
161
| =
(107
|
(2
10}
(12]
25

The notes on pages 55 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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ieport of the Auditors
0 THE COUNCIL OF THE ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF LONDON

/e have audited the financial statements on pages 52 to 67, which have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
s revaluation of certain fixed assets and on the basis of the accounting policies set out on pages 55 and 56.

iespective responsibilities of trustees and auditors
e Trustees of the Society are responsible for the preparation of financial statements lor each financial year which give a true and fair view
the state of affairs of the Society and of its net income or deficit for the year. In preparing the financial statements. the Trustees are
sponsible for keeping proper accounting records which are able to show with reasonable accuracy. at any time, the financial position of
¢ Society and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with generally accepted accounting principles. The Trustees
¢ also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Society and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
nd other irregularities.

is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion to you,

iasis of opinion

veconducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on
st hasis. of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
timates and judgements made by the trustees in the preparation of the financial statements. and of whether the accounting policies are
spropriate to the Society's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

Ve planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide
swith sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
v fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
he financial statements.

fundamental uncertainty
forming our opinion. we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made in the financial statements concerning the
el of financial resources available to the Society to continue its usual operations. The financial statements have been prepared on a going
oncern basis, the validity of which depends upon future funding being available. The Society suffered significant deficits for many vears, but
‘hieved a small surplus this vear. Significant assurance is not present to indicate that the Society will continue to operate profitably and this
uld result in it not having adequate resources to fund its usual operations. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that
wuld result from a failure to continue to operate profitably and obtain adequate funding. Details of the circumstances relating to this
indamental uncertainty are described in note 1ic). Our opinion is not qualified in this respect.

Ipinion

nour opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Society's affairs as at 3 1 st March. 1993 and of the excess of
ncome over expenditure for the yvear then ended.

ERNST & YOUNG

hartered Accountants

Registered Auditor

Llondon

'th July, 1993

Notes to the Financial Statements

. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)  Accounting Convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting
standards.

0l Changes in Accounting Policies
The Society changed its accounting policy for fixed assets and depreciation to that stated below from January 1984, Freehold land and
buildings acquired prior to December 1983 are fully depreciated; other buildings, plant, vehicles and fittings and furnishings were
written off in the year of purchase.

¢) Basis of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The validity of this assumption depends on future funds being
available to the Society to continue its usual operations. The Society has suffered significant deficits for many years, but has achieved
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1)

(g)

th)

(k)

(1}

[}

{1}

a small surplus this year. The appropriateness of the going concern basis is dependent upon the Society continuing to operate profitably

and having adequate resources to meet its lease obligations as referred to in Note 2.2,

Consolidation

The fGnancial statements consolidate the results and the assets and liabilities of the Society’s wholly owned subsidiaries Zon

Operations Limited, o0 Enterprises Limited, Yoo Restaurants Limited and Whipsnade Wild Animal Park Limited as well as the

Zoological Society of London Development Trust for which the Council appoints the Trustees. Zoo Operations Limited ceased to trade on

30th September 1992, From 1st October 1992 Yoo Enterprises Limited and Whipsnade Wild Animal Park Limited undertook the

trading activities at the Zoological Gardens at London Zoo and Whipsnade Wild Animal Park respectively. Zoo Restaurants Limited
remained dormant.

Form of Financial Statements

The Society maintains a number of internal funds earmarked by the Society itself for specific purposes. These designated lunds are:

(i) Development Fund: This fund relates to expenditure incurred on new buildings, the restoration of existing buildings and changes
to the infrastructure of the Society’s properties carried out to improve the facilities available to the animals and stalf and to the
visiting public. It is wholly financed from donations and grants received from the public which in certain circumstances have been
matched by grants from the Government. The donations and grants are released back to revenue over the expected useful life of the
relevant tangible asset by equal annual instalments.

(ii} ZSL Development Trust: The Zoological Society of London Development Trust is a separately constituted Trust with charitable
status whose Trustees are appointed by the Council of the Society. Its purpose is to raise funds to meet expenditure on new
buildings. the restoration of existing buildings and changes to the infrastructure ol the Society s properties.

(iii) Other designated funds: These have been given or bequeathed to the Society to be used in accordance with resolutions passed by
the Council of the Society. Both the capital and the income may be spent. Until they are spent, the lunds are invested in stocks,
shares and deposits.

(iv] Endowment Fund: This lund was created from a grant received [rom the Department of the Environment. The capital and incom:
are available to help pay for the upkeep. improvement and management of the Zoological Gardens at London Zoo and Whipsnade
Wild Animal Park.

(v} General Fund: The General Fund is the free fund of the Society. It has to provide for the maintenance, improvement and
management of the Institute of Zoology, Conservation and Consultancy projects, Publications, Library and membership
administration as well as for the Society's requirement for working capital.

Restricted Funds

Restricted funds of the Society which have conditions attached to their use are not included in the balance sheet, Details of these are sel

out in Note 20,

Grants

Government grants received of a revenue nature are credited to the General Fund in the year in which they are received. Grants

received of a capital nature are credited to the revenue account and then appropriated to the appropriate designated fund and are

released to revenue over the expected uselul life of the relevant assets by equal annual amounts

[nceme from donations

All donations are initially accounted for on a cash received basis. Where a donation is received for a specific purpose, the income is

deferred and included within accruals and deferred income. It is then credited to the revenue account over the period for which the

related costs are charged.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed assets acquired by purchase or gift during the year are shown at cost or valuation depreciated on a straight line basis at rates

appropriate to write off the cost over their expected useful lives. Freehold and leasehold buildings are depreciated over a range of 1 to 3

vears; plant and equipment 5 to 15 years and motor vehicles 5 years.

Investments and Investment Income

Listed investments are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and market value. Dividends and interest are accounted for

when the cash is received. The amount shown includes the related tax credits which, because of the Society’s charitable status. are

recoverable. Interest on bank deposits is accounted for on an accruals basis,

.‘{E-lln:'.l‘».':'.

Stocks are stated at the lower of direct cost and net realisable value with the following exceptions: no value is placed on the animals and

garden stocks and the library: stocks of scientific publications are included at nominal valuation.

Advertising Cosis

Costs incurred in relation to advertising are charged to the revenue account at the time the advertisements appear in the media or are

otherwise made public. Amounts inveiced but not vet taken to the revenue account are included in prepayments and accrued income.

Pension Cosis

The cost of providing pension benefits is charged to the revenue account over the period benefiting from employees’ services.

Leasing Commitments !

."'lf";:";'l_"l"; I"Ill:'[i:'"r'l‘l.'l'.‘l H]“ll."r h”;l”'{:f_" lt"':lﬂl.:".‘i dan ':Ipilulisf_‘d i|| ”'II." I'!l?;!li;l'l]i_'l" !-;,hL'-LI-[ ““.;I Are l!'!'|1'ﬂ'l'."lil[1.'t| aver [hl'il' tl.“it'['lll ]i.l_ 5, ']"hL-. i"“.'rl':"i[ L-l{-r]'p_'!'l[
of the rental obligations is charged to the revenue account over the period of the lease and represents a constant
proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding.

i




iy 2, DETAILED CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 1993

1993 1992
Surplus Surplus
o0 - Divisions Note Income Expenditure ( Deficit ( Deficit
he £ (00 £ 000 £ 0005 £ 00
i} pological Gardens -
he London oo Mal T Ta) 7 G3d | 56 (1.215)
e Whipsnade Park 2a) 3,203 3,367 (164 (873
ientific
Institute of Zoology Y 2 TR T 015 1551 (2004
{5 Conservation & Consultancy e 04 110 (16}
h Publications 2(d) 334 320 14 (27)
| Library 2le) 10} 110} [ 030 (9%
il Learned Sociely 21} 137 271 4 .
) <%
wientific Fund
transfer to
Institute of Zoology (182} (1821 (77
ord Zuckerman Bursary
Fund transier (o
i [nstitute of :.-"-.:-|||.l':_"|. (5] 5
i westment charges 5 = (15}
[ .||:||~.:ll'im'uuu'ilml|'~.;p|:u:1il|_|rr: }.231 14.684
perating deficit for the vear (4573) 5.6
_"‘-\.
]
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(a) Zoological Gardens

London Foo Whipsnade Parl
Note 1993 1992 1993 | 94
L'000s L£'000s L O00s L (M0
Income
Admission of visitors 1.711 1 714 1.505 1 524
Educational visits 155 153 T =2
Admission of cars to Park N 14
Car Parking at Zoo | ®0) | 70
Catering and Shops 2ig) : 344 i B2 1.0050) 1 170
Animal rides 32 59
Steam train 112 fi
Lilewatch scheme 9i) {RE! l 35 73
Consultancy |8
Other 278 1 ()5 | 44 iy
Lo 90 2.125 32003 1183
Expenditure
Cost of goods sold 1.254 1,444 445 493
sStaff costs 1,453 4.042 1.588 |.A52
Provisions |58 255 193 ¥4
Less:
Income from animal adoption scheme (7h) (58] (39 (22
Works i 1 39 1 30) 19
Gardening and Grounds 13 25 | 2 8
Utilities and other overheads 1.59() | .8h6 111 RS
Publicity and advertising 330 726 4h8 57
Backlog maintenance L |47
Administration 4h5 218 3 181
Depreciation 4 i< 23 o
7.1 9.138 3.354 4.044
surplus/(Deficit) in operating divisions | 89 (1,013 (151) (&b ]
Overheads (4] 153 4
|.|'|'Jr_|]-|_'4_-!.]-f||||'; :Il'.l_ {‘l‘:ll'nl -! 'Ip-l- .| ':_-|
Release r_run:l I.]e'rc'hlpr11-:n: Fund (530) i 386) (225) 1 3
Release from Endowment Fund (see
Note 15) (734 (93
(Dehcit) in Society i33) (202) (131 (12
=1 o0 1 . v i -
Ciperating Surplus/(Deficit) 156 (1.215) (164 (873 .




[MNANCIAI
FATEMENTS

4
5

) Institute of Zoology

ark Veterinary Wellcome Nuffield 1993 1992
19 Science Laboratories Laboratories Total Total
1) ==
£00s £ 0005 £ 000s L O00s £ O00s
=i ICOITE
= Fees and Donations B2 27 1) 119 47
: : ransfers from:
g Scientific Fund (see Note 15) 72 d 3 ¥ 182 Firi
i Lord Zuckerman Bursary (see Note 1) 5 5 ey
d rants
Government Grant 2hik 370 R3O 1.466 1.463
specific projects sl 284 b24 983 519
205 724 1.531 2,760 2,401
ypenditure
93 staff costs i63 473 1.016 1 .852 1.581
(werheads | 54 2 4349 834 bad
Administration 39 40) g2 171 166
[epreciation ! 25 31 (] 35
) Release from Development Fund - | ) (1) 2) (2)
2 593 743 1,577 2915 2.605
: perating ( Deficit) (9] (14 1 (155) (200}
!
4 ¢l Conservation & Consultancy
y 2 1993 14942
! £'000s £'000s
- come - fees Q4
rpenditure
Siafl Costs =3
(werheads 17 —
Administration 110} —
110
; lperating (Delicit) (16)
[ |
d} Publications
1) Journal
of Zoology, International | 993 1992
) Symposia Z00 Year Book Total Total
: £ 0005 £ 000s £ 000s £ 000s
5 |
nCome
= M Sales 240 94 334 321
txpenditure
i afafl costs 101 54 155 | 64
(Overheads [0h 4 14 17
Printing 112 19 131 145
|  Administration | 4 [ 2() | B
237 Hi 3200 345
I — —
‘perating Surplus/( Deficit) 1 11 14 (27)

e —

| International Zoo Year Book: Fixed costs are written offin the year in which they are incurred. Paper and printing costs are charged in the year

nwhich each volume is published.

‘oological Record and Nomenclator Zoologicus: The deficit for the year was £375 (1992-L26,354).
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[ncome

Expenditure
Staff costs
Overheads
Administration

Operating (Deficit)

i) Learned Society

Income
Members' subscriptions and fees
Donations
Symposium

Expenditure
Staff costs
Symposium costs
Owverheads
Investment charges transferred to Scientific Fund
Administration

Operating Surplus

(g} Catering and Shops

I'he turnover and net contribution to the Society from Catering and Shops were as follows:

London

Aio0
£'000s
TURNOVER

Catering 2,042
Shops 1,302
1.344

CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIETY
Catering 219
Shops 4413
hh2

60

Whipsnade 1993 London
Park Total Zoo
£'000s £000s £000s
612 2.654 2.337

438 1. 740} . 465

1,050} 4, 3494 .82

143 162 | 29

135 578 475

278 940 Hhd4

1993 1992
£ 000 £ (0
10}

5i] b7

349 14

21 %
110 04

{ 10D (93
1494 1992

£ 000 L0
1 20 (1R
102 ;
—1-’r_ I g |

| | o

13 12
151 1013
|_Ii|

41 16
223 A

4 :

Whipsnade 1992

Park Total

L0000 NS

Ah7 3 004

=) 4 T

L, 170 4972

|48 317

153 h28

30 ] 945

o
=

f,




1. OPERATING DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

9 1993
i) £ 0005
| Operating deficit is stated after charging/{crediting) the following items:
.-"|.I_II:!I|.I'IF:'{ rL'I!III:I'II.'Fq'II.I'H'I'I +4
Depreciation of fixed assets 1.028
A Release of Grants for purchasing fixed assets (737)
19 Consultancy fees 8
g Bank Interest payable
Finance charges on leased assets H
34 Government Revenue Grant for the Institute ol Zoology (1.466)
' 1
— No provision has been made for taxation on consultancy income received lrom abroad.
The Society does not believe there to be a liability to overseas taxation.
57 B 4 STAFF COSTS
a Salaries and wages 5.711
{15 5
Social security costs 497
" {ther pension costs 413
% f.621
i
: The average weekly number of employees during
the vear was made up as follows:
Full Part
B Time [ime
i Zoological Gardens - London Yoo 120 249
7 - Whipsnade Park 73 15
9 Institute of Zoology sl —
Conservation and Consultancy & 2
' Publications b
Library 2
Learned Society |
— Administration 25 2
311 4h
3 INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS 1993
L O00s
y. Rt
T Listed investments 183
I5
| b. INTEREST RECEIVABLE
% Bank deposits 298
2
f. RESTRUCTURING COSTS
j Pension scheme (216)
Other costs 154
:': Net (credit)/charge (62)
.

IHNANCILAL
TATEMENTS
| 992
L'000s
44
1.142
[ H3E )
fd
1
i
(1.463)
1 RE
574
dd5
71.207
Full *art
Time Time
1536 300
] 23
b
3
| -
27 2
155 75
4942
£000s
82
465
216
(23
B39

The restructuring charge for the vear ended 3 1st March 1992 included the cost of providing augmented pensions to those members of
the Zoological Society of London 1988 Pension Scheme who had been declared redundant. The Trustees of the Scheme subsequently

resolved to waive the contribution and the sum was repaid during the year ended 3 1st March 1993, Other costs includes auditors

remuneration for non-audit services of £15,500(1992-L19,5(1)).

il
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8. CURTAILMENT COSTS

A provision was made at 3 1st March 1992 for the estimated costs that would
have arisen on the closure of London Zoo. The amount included provision
for statutory redundancy payments, and liabilities for the early termination

of contracts. Following the subsequent decision to rescind the closure

announced on 1 7th June 1992, this provision has been reversed.

Provision lor permanent diminution in value of ixed assets

at London Zoo written back
Release of Grants for purchasing fixed assets written back

Net (Credit)/Charge

9. TANGIBLE FIXED) ASSETS
Freehaold
land and
buildings

(WS
Cost
At 31st March 1992 2.259
Purchased during the vear 22
Disposals
At 31st March 1993 2. 28]
Depreciation
At 31st March 1992 391
Charge for the vear 218
Permanent diminution
in value written back
Lisposals
At 3 1st March 1993 B4
Net book value
At 31st March 1993 1.472
At 31st March 1992 1.668

Included in additions during the year is £29.024 (1991/92

(1991/92 - £36.839) incurred by the Development Fund.

10. INVESTMENTS

Investments stated at the lower of cost and market value
Quoted investments

Market valuation at 31st March 1993

These investments are attributed to:
Scientific Fund
Fantham Bequest

[FP

Short
leasenol
buildings

L O00=
5.2 70

46
=. % 1R
5.239

!I.-

i 3.450))

Pt

(165

]

1.110

L4495,503)

Plant and

equipment

S

P
TR |
-
Lo

.

2,192

1.5005

1 |
A1

(41

1.399

;93

h54

|99 3
£ 000
(1,110
(4.8Y7)
753
(1.254)
Viotor | eased
vehicles plant
L0000 LM s
v 91
f
{2 5]
1710 4]
3008 a6
i1 11
(22]
327 47
{3 g4
79 55

1993
£ 0008

977

1,340

1992

L LM

0 T
107
e

141, 2500

F ||.'|I

| 1
LU

3,84,

| |

"I‘..' :\"k'

incurred by the Endowment Fund and £67.646

I gt

£ 000s

1.003

1.2005
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1993 1992
[V L (00s OO0
s Bil, STOCKS
Raw materials and consumables 114 128
Finished goods and goods for resale 07 418
2] 546
1 (]
.|._
¥ ]
Sl I, DEBTORS
= I'rade 117 213
Other debtors ihi GO0
Prepayments and accrued income 139 111
824 924
I Il e —
il 1%
1
¥i 1, CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one year
-3 [rade b2 193
VAT 10 3
1 PAYE and National Insurance contributions 194 152
Other creditors 122 4}
Accruals and deferred income 816 532
7 Curtallment Costs (see Mote 5 1,110
8 — - —
20004 2,396
b
1. CREDITORS: amounts falling due alter more than one year
3 Finance lease obligations — 12

6 B15. FUNDS

[he Society has designated five main funds in order to present more clearly the inflows of funds received for capital development
purposes and from the Government. It has been decided to combine the former Building and Equipment Fund with the
Development Fund. In addition, the ZSL Development Trust is included in the accounts (see Note 1(e).(ii)). The consequent
restatement of the Funds at 3 1st March 1992 is set out below.

1] 1
| B ]
Funds per 1992 Accounts:
o Development 701
)i Building & Equipment 391
1992 Accounts total restated [, (192
()
3
5
3 In addition, this vear, it was considered more appropriate to transfer into the Development Fund the amount of the Endowment Fund
— invested in fixed assets which have been financed by Grants.

B3
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DEVELOPMENT FUND 1993 1993
£ (s L0
Balance at 3 1st March 1992 1.092 LG]2
Release of Grants for purchasing fixed assets (£ 27) 51
Release of Grants for permanent diminution
in value of fixed assets at London Zoo 3 of a3 [2.85873)
Grants for purchasing fixed assets (14) 9
Transter of ixed assets from Endowment Fund (see Note 1 5) 716
Transfer to General Fund (144
Being appropriation from/(to) Revenue Account 702 | 18
Balance at 31st March 1993 4790 0492
The Development Fund was wholly invested in fixed assets.
LSL DEVELOPMENT TRUST
Balance at 31st March 1992 701 M
Interest receivable 52 29
Grants for purchasing assets, less donations paid {275) 18
Being appropriation (to)/from Revenue Account (223)
Balance at 31st March 1993 478 701
OTHER DESIGNATED FUNDS
Lo
Statl Auckerman
Fantham Scientiic  Composition Benevolent Bursary
Bequest Fund Fund Fund Fund Tonal
£'000s £'000s £000's £ 0005 £ 0000 £ 0005
Balance at 3 1st March 1992 14 1.040) 35 3 | 4 | 106
[nvestment income | 161 | 1 164
(Deficit) on sale
of investments - (7) -
Transfer to Institute
of Zoology (see Note 2(b)) - (182} (5) (187
[nvestment charges (5) (5]
Being appropriation
rom/{to) Revenue Account 1 (33) ] (4) (35
Balance at 315t March 1993 15 1,007 6 1 10 1.071

In addition, the Heer Bequest balance at 31st March 1993 was £91 (1992-£9]),
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993, ENDOWMENT FUND
LI Mg 19973 1992
b12 £ 000s £'000s
1 Balance at 31st March 1992 1.132 5.592
5 19 —
Release of Grants for purchasing lixed assets - (327)
HE] Release of Grants for permanent diminution
in value of fixed assets at London Zoo (&8 s0))
1> il it —
! Grants for purchasing tixed assets 1,454 317
144) Interest receivable 235 | 54
Surplus/{Deficit) on Zoo Operations Ltd 1.679 (1.784)
18 (Deficit) Zoos Divisions (1.640) B
Transfer of fixed assets to Development Fund (see Note 15) (716) i1)
P, I'ransfer to General Fund i3 S
— Restructuring Costs H2 (839)
Curtailment Costs (see Note 8) 1,110 (1.110)
Being appropriation from/(to) Revenue Account 2,181 (3.263)
Balance at 31st March 1993 3,313 1.132
:_'|"\.I.
Y B, RESTRICTED FUNDS
LE la}l De Arroyvave Fund
'he trusteeship of the Fund was transferred during the year from the Official Custodian for Charities to the Society. The receipt
4] of income from the Fund continues to be conditional upon the Society fulfilling certain obligations. Net income was £23,015

(1992123 856
ib) Davis Fund
— I'he Fund is held in trust by the Society. Income from the Fund was L161 (1992-L161).

1. PENSION SCHEMES
The Society participates in several Pension Schemes and employees join the appropriate scheme, depending on their employment
terms. The total pension cost of the Society was £4 13,452 (1991/92 £444.567).
{a) Universities Superannuation Scheme: This is a defined benefit scheme which is externally funded and contracted out of the State
Farnings-Related Pension Scheme. The Fund is valued every three years by a professionally qualified independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method, the rates of contribution payable being determined by the trustee on the advice of

il the actuary. In the intervening years, the actuary reviews the progress of the Scheme. Pension costs are assessed in accordance
= with the advice of the actuary, based on the latest actuarial valuation of the Scheme, and are accounted for on the basis of charging
s the cost of providing pensions over the period during which the Society benefits from the employees services. | nless it is
6 considered prudent to recognise deficiencies over a shorter period, variations from regular cost are spread over the expected

average remaining working lifetime of Members of the Scheme after making suitable allowances for future withdrawals.
& The Scheme provides benefits based on linal pensionable salary for employees of all UK universities and some other employers such
as the Society. The assets of the Scheme are held in a separate trustee-administered fund.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Scheme was at 3 15t March 1990, The main actuarial assumptions were an investment return
- of 81% per annum, salary scale increases of 6% per annum and that pensions would increase by 5% per annum.

3 At the date of the last actuarial valuation, the market value of the assets of the Scheme was £5.474 million and the
actuarial value of the assets was sufficient to cover 90% of the benefits which had accrued to Members after allowing for the effect
of future increases in their earnings. The level of contributions paid by the Society takes into account this actuarial dehciency.

3 (b) The Zoological Society 1988 Pension Scheme: The Society’s own self-administered occupational pension Scheme is a non-
; contributory defined benefit scheme which is externally funded and is not contracted out of the State Earnings-Related
| Pension Scheme. The Scheme is valued every three years by a professionally qualified independent actuary using the attained age
— method. The Actuary confirms annually, based on a detailed knowledge of the affairs of the Scheme, that the conclusions reached

at the last valuation date have not substantially altered. Payments made to the Scheme and charged in these flinancial statements
are based upon actuarial advice. The assets of the Scheme are held in separate trustee-administered funds.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Scheme was at 30th June 1990, The main actuarial assumptions are an investment return of
9% per annum, salary increases would average 7% per annum and that pensions would increase by 4.5% per annum.
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At the date of the latest actuarial valuation the market value of the assets was £7.3 million and the actuarial value of the assets
exceeded the benefits that had accrued to members by 26%. after allowing for the effect of future increases in their earnings
]rTIPFH'I.'L'H:I{‘HiH to benefits have been made which have the effect of r‘*.‘dll-.'ill_ﬂ the ov er-provisien o a level -'ix'k"'lﬁh'il!'!r: to the Inland

Fevenue,

In the opinion of Council, on the recent advice of their actuaries, the present level of funding is adequate.

(¢c) Department of Education and Science: The Society contributes for one person to a pension scheme administered through the

Department of Education and Science, for teachers employed by the Society during their period of service.

. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Mo provision has been made for the significant potential liability for repairing obligations in connection with the Regent’s Park lease
[nitial surveys performed lor the Department of Mational Heritage estimated that this obligation was £15 million. A more recent surves
has valued these repairs at £7.75 million. The Department of National Heritage has agreed that this more recent survey is a suitable

basis for determining the Society's repairing obligation.

The Society is L‘Llr'rl‘nrh.' negotiating the terms of a new lease which will include a programme of repairs agreed annually. to s

1tisly the

above obligation. The Department of National Heritage has indicated that this programme will take into account the financial positior

of the society.

FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Net amount payvable;
Mext yvear
In the second to fifth vears

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING RESULTS TO

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Surplus/{deficit) for the vear after exceptional items
Depreciation

Release of grants for purchasing fixed assets
Investment income

Interest received

Interest element of finance leases

Bank interest paid

Deficit/isurplus) on sale of assets
Decrease/(increase) in stocks

Decrease in debtors

Decrease in creditors

Provision lor curtailment costs

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
AMNALYSIS OF CHANGES IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING THE YEAR

Balance at 1st April 1992
MNet cash outflow

Balance at 31st March 1993 (see note 26)

[ iy § | Qe
LOns L0000
| | 2

|2

12 24
1,251 (L0 Y
1.0028 1.142
Ll | T 1]
(1871 {82
(298) (463
] i

I

125 (291
148 201
(592) (54)
1,110} (1,110]
1.844 (3,0549)
2.2494 5.424
2.174 (3.135
4. 468 2,294

1,
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ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS AS SHOWN IN THE BALANCE SHEET

Cash at bank and in hand

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THE YEAR

Balance at 1st April 1992

Bank interest

[nvestment income

Cash outflows from hnancing

Provision for curtailment costs

Operating deficit

Grants for purchasing lixed assets

Release of grants for purchasing fixed assets

Provision for permanent diminution in asset values written back

Balance at 31st March 1993

STATUS OF THE SOCIETY

1993
L0005
4 4ihH

3.4635

1992
£ 0005
2,294

2,294

FINAMNMCIAL
STATEMENTS

Change in vear
£ 000s
2.174

Specihic
Funds
£ O00s
1031
287

| b4
1,111
{1000 )
1,1

1 i

B
571
53

H.h32

Finance lease
obligations
£ 000s

Ihe Society is incorporated by Roval Charter and is a registered charity, No. 208728, It is exempt from United Kingdom taxation.

by
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LEGACIES TO THE SOCIETY

The Zoological Society of London is a registered charity (Number: 208728} and all gifts to it are
completely exempt from capital gains tax and capital transfer tax

Please consider leaving the Society a legacy in your will. The Society’s many educational and
conservation activities depend on the generosity of its friends and benefactors. Its world famous
collection of animals and the Institute of Zoology also need financial support. Unless income can be
constantly increased, there is certain to be a reduction in what the Society can achieve. A legacy would
be a very real help.

Further advice on legacies and how the Society may benefit can be obtained from The Secretary,
Zoological Society of London, Regent's Park. London NW 1 4RY.

Printed on chlorine-free environmentally friendly paper
by Henry Ling Ltd, at the Dorset Press. Dorchester. Dorset
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In Attendance: animal Manager and Veterinary Officsi
Marketing Managei
Operations Manager

@13. Enter Regency Sulte, welcomed by the Deputy Chalrman ot the | & .00

Ql4. Take Tea with guests

adls. Sign: Visitors Book. 16.25

Hhotodraoh
Edla. Short speech from President.

Presicent accompanles \Queen Lo motor Ccarn

) Laave Joo after formal farewslls. L& .S
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